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FIVE YEARS REPORT

INTRODUCTION

THE NATIONWIDE LEADER
AND THE PRESIDENT OF
THE COUNTRY ABOUT
SHIPPING

‘Our Caspian Shipping Company'’s fleet is
a huge wealth of Azerbaijan. They do great
works and will continue in the future as well.
It is pleasing that works in this field are
developing in a positive direction’

Heydar Aliyev

Nationwide Leader of Azerbaijani People
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INTRODUCTION

It is very good that vessels of the Caspian Shipping also operate on the Black Sea. The
shipping has a bright future. The reforms under way, structural reforms and steps taken in
relation to the shipping operations are yielding excellent results. There will be even better
results... | am sure that the Caspian Shipping Company will grow into a great and modern
global company... Our shipping industry has always played a major role in the Caspian Sea. By
creating a modern company today, we will strengthen our economic potential and at the same
time, the Caspian Shipping Company will assert itself globally as a modern, well-managed and
transparent company.

Itham Aliyev

President of the Azerbaijan Republic
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CHAIRMAN’S
FOREWORD
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One of the main directions of
the socio-economic development
strategy established by the
Nationwide Leader Heydar Aliyev and
successfully continued by President
Ilham Aliyev is comprehensive
development of the transport sector.
Special attention and care has always
been paid by the government to the
shipping industry, which is one of
the priority areas of the transport
sector bearing international
importance. Major reforms have been
implemented in this direction and
complex measures are continuously
taken for the development of the
shipping industry.

In order to increase international
and domestic transportation,
to increase the quality of the
services provided, to strengthen
the competitiveness and the
transit potential of the country,

in accordance with the Decree of
the President of the Republic of
Azerbaijan, dated October 22,2013
about merging the country’s two
largest existing fleets - Azerbaijan
State Caspian Shipping Company
and Caspian Sea Oil Fleet of the
State Oil Company of the Republic
of Azerbaijan, Azerbaijan Caspian
Shipping Closed Joint Stock Company
(ASCO) was established.

Based on Mr. President’s
assignments on establishing a highly
profitable and efficiently operating
commercial organization having the
potential to face modern challenges
in the new economic conjuncture,
shipping industry’s development
targets were set and Strategic
Development Program was prepared
to achieve these targets. The
Company’s operations are organized
based on this approved Program,
as well as, “the State Program on
the Development of Shipping in the
Republic of Azerbaijan for the period
of 2016-2020" approved by the Decree
of the President of the Republic of
Azerbaijan, dated November 7, 2016.

Main objectives standing in
front of the new management have
been the renewal of our fleet with
affordable and competitive modern
vessels meeting international
requirements, retention and further
strengthening of the leading position
of Azerbaijan shipping in the Caspian
Sea, increasing service export
potential of our country by vessels
floating under the flag of Azerbaijan
in waters beyond the Caspian Sea,
focusing on main activity by handing
over non-profile subdivisions which
do not belong to core operations of
the Company to relevant authorities,
raising interest to shipping industry
among younger generation and
preparing young talent that can be
successful followers of Azerbaijani
seafarers who earned fame in
international waters, implementing
corporate governance system, as
well as leading programs, procedures
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and systems that proved themselves
in international practice for more
effective and efficient management
of vessels and shipping in general,
performing operations in a safe
manner and without harming the
environment.

During last 5 years of our
activities, ASCO has implemented
a number of projects and achieved
major positive results in health and
occupational safety, environmental
protection, human resource
management, corporate governance,
social and economic spheres.
So that, International Financial
Reporting Standards have been
implemented in ASCO since 2014 and
financial statements based on these
standards are compiled each year.
Additionally, as a continuation of
ensuring transparency in the shipping
field, preparation of Sustainable
development reports covering a
period of two years has been started
in the Company since 2014. Financial
statements for the years of 2014,
2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018, as well as
Sustainable development reports of
the Company for the years of 2014-
2015 and 2016-2017 have been audited
by international audit firm “EY”,
positive opinion was presented and
the reports were openly published on
the official web-site of the Company.
In 2016, ASCO’s business model has
been analyzed by international
rating agency “Fitch” and a credit
rating was provided to the Company
for the first time in its history. For
the purpose of improvement of the
corporate governance system, a
roadmap was developed for ASCO
by an international consulting
company, and during after coming
years projects outlined in the
roadmap were implemented. In 2016,
a performance based remuneration
system (KPI system) was designed
and prepared and implemented in
the Company since 1 January 2017.
As a result of regular international
audits of ISO and ISM certifications

presented to the Company, the
compliance of the Company’s
Effective Safety Management System
with the international standards was
confirmed.

After the inception of ASCO, our
fleet was improved with the purchase
and commissioning of 20 new modern
vessels. Based on ASCQO’s order, 6
vessels are currently being built at
Baku Shipyard: 2 new generation
Ro-Pax/Ferry type vessels for
transporting railway wagons, trucks
and passengers, and 4 tankers with
loading capacity of 8,000 tons each.
Besides, negotiations are conducted
on placing an order in the same
ship yard for the construction of
additional 2-6 vessels in near future.

At the same time, according to
Mr. President’s recommendations
and assignments on decreasing the
dependence of the shipping industry
on one market and diversifying the
operations, in 2014 ASCO resumed
its operations in international
waters beyond the Caspian Sea.
Currently, ASCO participates in
international cargo shipping market
and operates 14 vessels under
the flag of Azerbaijan in Black and
Mediterranean Sea basins. In 2017
ASCO founded two new companies
named “Caspdry” and Casptankers”
in Turkey. New companies serve for
more effective exploitation of vessels
floating under the flag of Azerbaijan
in basins beyond the Caspian Sea.
“Caspdry” realizes the operations of
dry cargo vessels, and “Casptankers”
of liquid cargo transporting tankers
beyond the Caspian Sea. At the same
time, ASCO’s offices were established
in Greece and Russia to expand
international operations of the
Company.

Today, as the leading shipping
company of the region, ASCO’s
operations are focused on

transformation of Azerbaijan into

the regional transport logistics hub,
realizing favorable geographical
location of our country and its transit
potential, as well as developing
Trans-Caspian corridor. To this

end, ASCO closely cooperates with
relevant bodies participating in cargo
transportation of our country, as well
as other countries.

The Five Years' Report that further
you will get familiar with, outlines
in more details the objectives set
for and achievements of ASCO
since its inception, envisioned
plans for the coming years, history
of shipping, ASCQO’s structure,
subsidiaries and joint ventures,
international representative offices,
core business areas and routes of
our fleet, our mission, strategic
targets and goals, business model
and priorities, corporate governance
system, environmental management,
personnel management, health and
occupational safety, social activities,
financial indicators and a number of
other significant data.

Finally, | would like to note that,
the Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping
celebrates its 160th anniversary,
as well as 5 years of operating as
a closed joint-stock company. The
shipping industry, which has a rich
history of 160 years, has passed a
glorious way during this period and
fostered many heroic seafarers who
have earned fame in international
waters and far oceans. Today ASCO
works hard to continue this glorious
history, to protect the values and via
taking the advantage of experience
over the years to continue its
development as a modern shipping
company.

Rauf Valiyev
The Chairman of ASCO
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OUR COMPANY

ABOUT ASCO
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Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping
was founded in 1858 via the
establishment of “The Caucasus and
Mercury” shipping company. ASCO
has 160 years of rich history and
today Azerbaijan shipping embodies
years of experience, as well as
corporate governance system built in
accordance with the requirements of
modern age.

Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping was
re-established as a closed joint-stock
company and stepped on the new
phase of its development by Decree
No. 6 of the President of the Republic
of Azerbaijan dated October 22, 2013,
On the establishment of Azerbaijan
Caspian Shipping Closed Joint-Stock
Company, and Decree No. 213 dated

January 10, 2014, On the organization
of activities of Azerbaijan Caspian
Shipping Closed Joint-Stock Company.
So that, based on these decrees,
Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping Closed
Joint-Stock Company (ASCO) was
established through merger of

the country’s two major fleets -
Azerbaijan State Caspian Sea Shipping
Company and Caspian Sea Oil Fleet of
the State Oil Company of Azerbaijan
Republic, with the aim to continue
wide-scale structural reforms in the
economy, to increase domestic and
international marine transportation,
and to improve the competitiveness
and transit potential of the country.

ASCO, being the connecting link
for the Transport Corridor Europe-
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Caucasus-Asia (TRACECA), provides cargo and passengers
transportation services along the Trans-Caspian corridor,
as well as, relevant specialized offshore services for
offshore petroleum operations.

Besides the transportation fleet, a specialized fleet
and ship repair yards are also included in ASCO. ASCO is
the largest and oldest shipping company operating in the
Caspian Sea basin. Currently, ASCO’s vessels are operating
both in the Caspian Sea and in the waters beyond the
Caspian Sea under the flag of Azerbaijan.

OUR HISTORY

Caspian shipping was founded with establishment
of “The Caucasus and Mercury” Joint-Stock Company on
May 21, 1858. As the volume of freight transported by sea
increased, the number of ports on shores of the Caspian
Sea grew, new bridges were constructed, storage facilities
were built, and cranes were installed. The expansion of
the fleet necessitated the establishment of a ship repair
base and thus, the mechanical plant of “The Caucasus
and Mercury” Joint-Stock Company was founded in Baku in
1866. Baku Seamen classes were organized in 1881 to meet
the staffing requirements of the emerging fleet.

The development of shipping in Azerbaijan is tightly
tied with establishment and progress of the oil industry.
Rapid growth of oil production in Baku in XIX century
triggered the development of shipping in the Caspian Sea.
It goes without saying that in that period a need emerged
to new floating facilities for the transportation of oil and
oil products. And it's no coincidence that the world’s first
oil barge, “Alexander”, began its operations in the Caspian
Sea in 1873. The first tanker in the world, “Zoroaster” (built
in 1878), was also voyaging in the Caspian Sea. Caspian
seafarers were destined to sail on the first vessel with an
internal combustion engine, named Vandal (1903), and the

first vessel with two reversible engines, named Delo (1908).

In subsequent years, the shipping fleet was enriched
by new types of vessels constructed in the country and
abroad. River-sea type tankers and ships carrying cotton,
timber and etc. were placed at the disposal of Caspian

seafarers. the largest ferry crossing in Europe at that
time, Baku-Turkmenbashi, designed by specialists of the
Caspian Sea Transport Project Research and Scientific
Investigation Institute, was put into operation in 1962.

Since 1960, vessels of Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping
started to sail in the world waters via the Volga-Baltic
Waterway.

The history of Caspian Sea Oil Fleet, covering a period
of more than 60 years, is full of glorious pages. “Azerneft”
Union was established by decree of the USSR Cabinet of
Ministers dated October 31, 1949, “On Development of
Offshore Oil Production in the Caspian Sea”, while the
“Floating Crafts” division was established as a component
of “Azerneft” Union by order of the USSR Ministry of Oil
Industry dated November 4, 1949. The development of
the Caspian Sea Oil Fleet began since that date. At that
time, the floating crafts of “Stalinneft” and “Artyomneft”
offshore drilling trusts were transferred to ownership of
the newly established organisation. These mainly were
“Transportnik”, “Gabala”, “BMK-90" type small boats,

20 tons floating cranes and barges. By the Order of the
USSR Ministry of Oil Industry dated January 22, 1953, the
“Floating Crafts” Division was remade into the Caspian Sea
Oil Fleet.

Today, by combining the maritime transport fleets
into a single entity, ASCO is committed to fulfilling its
objectives efficiently and to a high standard.

Ll i i
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Foundation of the
Caspian Sea Oil Fleet
by establishing the
Floating Vehicles
Division serving the
Azerneft Union

Establishment of the Azerbaijan
Caspian Shipping Closed Joint-
Stock Company by merging
Azerbaijan State Caspian
Shipping Company and the
Caspian Sea Oil Fleet of the
State Oil Company of Azerbaijan
Republic
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rapid development
stage of the specialized
oil fleet




FIVE YEARS REPORT

STRUCTURAL UNITS, SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT
VENTURES AND REPRESENTATIVE OFFICES

ASCO pays special attention to organizing and
constantly improving a management structure that
enables taking prompt business decisions and effective
management. Thus, in order to ensure the most optimal
management structure, the Company has taken several SUBSIDIARIES
optimization measures on the recommendation of
international advisory companies and non-core structural
units which are not directly related to main business were STRUCTURAL
handed over to relevant authorities. Since 2014, ASCO has UNITS
handed over housing and utilities, event center for the
seafarers, the “Danizchi” auxiliary agricultural enterprise,
land used for agriculture, and the Central Seamen Hospital
to relevant authorities. Such initiatives are further
ongoing.

Currently, ASCO’s structural units, subsidiaries, joint
ventures and representative offices are as follows:

Representative offices are operating in the following

STRUCTURAL UNITS: countries:
ASCO Headquarters . The Republic of Turkey
Caspian Sea Oil Fleet . The Republic of Kazakhstan

Sea Transport Fleet
Bibiheybat Ship Repair Yard
Zygh Ship Repair and Construction Yard

. The Republic of Turkmenistan
. The Islamic Republic of Iran

Production Services Department . Greece
Zygh Dry Cargo Port

SUBSIDIARIES: In January 2017, ASCO established Caspdry Ship
Management Inc. and Casptankers Ship Management
Caspdry Ship Management Inc. (The Republic of Turkey) Inc. as legal entities in Turkey to organize the effective
Casptankers Ship Management Inc. (The Republic of Turkey) management of vessels operating in the Black and
Azerbaijan State Marine Academy Mediterranean Sea basins. The main objectives of these
ACSC Logistics LLC companies are to organize more efficient operations of

ASCO’s vessels sailing under the flag of Azerbaijan beyond
the Caspian Sea and to assist in settling issues arising
during cargo transportation in an efficient and timely

Caspian Sea Transport Project Research and Scientific

Investigation Institute

Danizchi Housing Cooperative manner. Caspdry Ship Management Inc. is engaged in the
Danizchi Repair-Construction LLC management of dry cargo vessels, while Casptankers Ship
Seamen Polyclinic LLC Management Inc. manages tankers operating beyond the
Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping Limited (The Republic of Malta) Caspian Sea.
Yacht Club LLC Caspian Sea Shipping LLC, a joint venture in which ASCO
“ASCO Trasportation” LLC is a partner, started operations in Astrakhan, the Russian
“ASCO Security” LLC Federation, at the end of 2015. This Company serves to
ease the access of ASCO's vessels to foreign markets
JOINT VENTURES: through the Volga-Don Canal. The key reason for the

establishment of the Company was to increase cargo
transportation between the ports of Azerbaijan and
Russia, as well as to provide timely resolution of issues
arising during these cargo transportations.

Caspian Sea Shipping LLC
Caspian Marine Engineering Bureau LLC

WWw.acso.az
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Caspian Sea Transport Project Research and Scientific
Investigation Institute, operating within the ASCO
structure, provides engineering, design and construction
services for the shipping industry. To expand this business
line, the Caspian Marine Engineering Bureau LLC joint
venture was established in December 2016 by ASCO and
Odessa Marine Engineering Bureau, a prominent global
provider of ship design and construction services.

This joint venture has created an opportunity for the
Caspian Sea Transport Project Research and Scientific
Investigation Institute and Odessa Marine Engineering
Bureau to share experience and run joint projects. The
main purpose in establishing the joint venture was

to provide engineering and construction services for
maritime and river transport, to carry out design and
construction operations, to build, reequip and modernize
ships and floating facilities, to conduct other scientific
research activities and to train skilled personnel in this
field.

The personnel of the Caspian Sea Transport Project
Research and Scientific Investigation Institute have

made a worthy contribution to the development of ferry
connection. The Institute has prepared the designs of
ferry complexes at the Baku, Turkmenbashi and Bekdash
ports. The Vanino-Kholmsk ferry crossing connecting
Sakhalin Island with the mainland, Ilichevsk-Varna
(Ukraine-Bulgaria) and Klaipéda-Mukran (Lithuania-
Germany) ferry crossings were also constructed using the
institute’s designs. Works conducted by this institute also
include designs for the construction of hydro technical

devices of the Baku Deep Water Jacket Factory located

in the Garadagh district of Baku, the reconstruction

of ship repair yards and vessel navigation canals, the
construction of public and residential buildings and other
various installations. In addition, some research and
design activities have been carried out in Syria, Libya,
Iran, Bulgaria and Afghanistan.

In April 2016, ASCO established Danizchi Housing
Cooperative to meet the housing needs of the Company’s
former and current employees who have been queuing for
apartments for many years. The primary responsibility

of this cooperative is to accelerate the process of
providing employees with housing and improving their
living conditions upon agreement with relevant state
authorities. Moreover, in November 2017, ASCO established
Danizchi Repair-Construction LLC, which is engaged in the
construction of a residential complex in accordance with
urban planning and construction legislation.

The main objective of Seamen Polyclinic operating within
the ASCO structure is to deliver high-quality diagnostics,
outpatient and inpatient care to all company employees
and their family members, as well as to third parties.

Detailed information about Azerbaijan State Marine
Academy and ACSC Logistics LLC is provided in the “Our
fleet and main business operations” section of the report.
Representative offices of ASCO in the Republic of Turkey,
the Republic of Kazakhstan, the Republic of Turkmenistan,
the Islamic Republic of Iran and Greece assist in the
efficient and timely addressing of issues arising at the
ports of these countries or other relevant locations.

WWW.acso0.az
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Since its establishment in 2013, ASCO has faced and
overcome numerous challenges while maintaining the
leading position in Offshore and Marine industry in the
Caspian Sea region. Today ASCO stands as a full-fledged
marine services and offshore shipping company with
different business divisions. We have transport fleet,
offshore fleet, ship building and ship repairing divisions/
yards.

ASCO plays connecting role in the Transport Corridor
Europe-Caucasus-Asia (TRACECA), provides marine
transportation of goods and passengers, as well as
offshore support services for oil and gas operations.

The 21st century requires a new vision. Global markets
are opening and boundless competition characterizes
this new century. We are greeting this new century with
high expectations for maintaining the leadership position
in our core business fields in the Caspian Sea region
and trying to expand our shipping business in areas
beyond the Caspian Sea. New representation offices or
subsidiaries were opened in the last couple of years in
Astrakhan (Russia), Istanbul (Turkey) and Athens (Greece)
where our company is active. At the same time studies are
being carried out for expansion into different regions.

To this end, we will continue to improve the technology
and quality of our mainstream products. Therefore, we
have set a target to do the followings in the coming years:

- To renew our tanker fleet with new modern tankers,
currently the building of one of the new sea-river type
modern tankers is expected to finish in 2019 and the
second one in the first half of 2020.

- To build new modern Ro-Pax vessels, currently two
units are being built at Baku Shipyard and the building is
expected to finish in 2020.

- To renew offshore fleet with preferably modern DP 1
and DP 2 AHTSVs, PSVs, DSVs and etc.

In 2018 we bought 4 modern DP 1 PSVs and we keep
renewing the offshore fleet.

- We keep maintaining our fleet units to meet the
Caspian oil and gas majors’ requirements.

We continue providing increasingly innovative training
schemes including DP trainings which is helping our
office and sea staff to improve their knowledge and
safety records of the fleet. The future will be delivered
by our combination of assets - including our dedicated
people, the size and quality of our fleet, our stronghold
position in the Caspian Sea and Black Sea regions, ASCO's
commitment to innovation and digitization and finally by
our expanding offering of logistics services.

Today, ASCO is the leading Marine and Offshore
services company in the Caspian Sea region. We highly
value the mutual trust and understanding forged with our
business partners and clients throughout the Caspian Sea
and the world. We will continue to cherish these precious
relationships and do our utmost to offer our customers
the best products and services available.

WWW.acso0.az
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OUR FLEET AND MAIN BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

ASCO’s core activities comprise:

. Cargo transportation

. Specialized offshore services for the oil industry
. Ship repair and construction

. Education and training

. Other supporting activities

Cargo transportation:

ASCO provides cargo transportation services in the
Caspian Sea and waters beyond the Caspian Sea, mainly
in the Black and Mediterranean Sea basins. Cargo is
transported by the ASCO’s transport fleet. Transport fleet
comprises tankers, universal dry cargo vessels, ferries
and Ro-Ro type vessels. Currently, 52 vessels, including 22
tankers, 15 dry cargo vessels, 13 ferries and 2 Ro-Ro type
vessels are operated in the transport fleet of ASCO.

Transport fleet composition

Type of vessel Number
Tanker 22
Dry cargo 15
Ro-Ro 2
Ferry 13
Total 52

ASCO’s tanker fleet transports oil and oil products
and is used to transport most of the liquid cargo through
the Caspian Sea. In accordance with its strategy to
diversify business lines and reduce dependence on a
single market, ASCO has offered transportation services
by tankers beyond the Caspian Sea since 2017. At present,
ASCO operates two tanker vessels in the Black and
Mediterranean Sea basins.

WWw.acso.az

Universal dry cargo vessels of ASCO operate both in
the Caspian Sea and in the Black and Mediterranean Sea
basins. ASCQ’s dry cargo vessels in the Caspian Sea serve
to maintain Azerbaijan's position in dry cargo market in
the Caspian Sea, and to meet demand for transit container
volumes which is predicted to increase.

In total, ASCO operates 14 vessels beyond the Caspian
Sea - in the Black and Mediterranean Sea basins, including
12 dry cargo vessels and 2 tanker vessels and these
vessels are floating in international waters under the flag
of Azerbaijan.

Today, ASCO is the only shipping company that
operates ferries in the Caspian Sea. ASCO’s ferries
transport wagons, trucks, and container cargo along the
Trans-Caspian corridor, linking railways on the Eastern
and Western shores of the Caspian Sea.

ASCO’s Ro-Ro vessels “Composer Fikrat Amirov” and
“Composer Gara Garayev” transport various wheeled
vehicles, including large cargo vehicles, along the
Kazakhstan-Azerbaijan and Turkmenistan-Azerbaijan
routes.

Specialized offshore services for the oil industry

ASCO’s specialized oil fleet consists of 212 vessels
and serves many important oil and gas projects in
the Caspian Sea region. Its operations include oil and
gas production processes, the construction of marine
platforms, geological exploration, laying oil and gas
pipelines and their repair during operations, firefighting at
oil facilities, delivering oil workers to their workplace, and
other activities involving the exploration and extraction
of mineral resources at the bottom of the sea. This fleet
is also involved in the development of the Shah Deniz,
Bahar-Gum-Deniz and Azeri-Chirag-Gunashli fields in the
Caspian region.




OUR COMPANY

Specialized oil fleet composition, number

Type of vessel Gami sayli
Crane vessels 22
Passenger ships 25
Anchor handling tug supply vessels 19
Platform support vessels 7
Tug boats 3
Port tug boats 8
Diving support vessels 1
Firefighting vessels 6
Barges 6
Liquid cargo vessels (tankers) 8
Engineering-geological vessels 5
Underwater pipelaying vessels 2
Surface cleaner and sewage water 12
collector vessels

Support boats 68
Ship repair workshops 3
Floating workshop 1
Dredger ships and convoys 6
Total 212

Ship repair and construction:

The Zygh Ship Repair and Construction Yard (Zygh
SRCY) and the Bibiheybat Ship Repair Yard (Bibiheybat
SRY) repair the vessels and technical equipment of both
ASCO and other shipping companies, prepare spare
parts, special paint and technical tools according to
orders. At the same time, Zygh yard has started providing
shipbuilding services by passing relevant certification
since 2017. Other services carried out in these yards
include the installation and tuning of ship systems and

equipment, electric and radio-navigation equipment,
engines, and devices; diving and underwater hydro-
technical works; the inspection, cleaning and painting
of underwater hulls, steering wheels and screws by
lifting ships on to the dock; the inspection and repair
of hydrostatic separating devices and individual rescue
vehicles, and the maintenance of ASV type isolating
breathing apparatuses.

Three berths, a new administration building, a new
warehouse complex, a canteen building, a social building
and a changing room were built and commissioned at Zygh
ship repair yard to improve the quality of repair works and
speed up the repair processes. In addition, a mechanical
workshop, repair shop, compressor building, blacksmith
workshop, boiler house, potable water pumping station,
transformer substation, heating network, and new
crossing points were built and commissioned; power
and potable water supply networks were set up and the
blacksmith workshops and boiler house were connected
to the gas system.

Infrastructure expansion works, including the overhaul
of the coastal bridge and the construction of substations
for dockyard berths, were carried out at Bibiheybat ship
repair yard. It is planned to extend the berths and cranial
roads, overhaul current cranial roads, and to renew the
yard’s equipment at the next stage.

WWW.acso0.az
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Education:

Azerbaijan State Marine Academy (ASMA), that is part of
the ASCO structure, has 130 years of experience in marine
education and prepares seafarers for shipping companies
in Azerbaijan, as well as in other countries of the region.
Currently, the Academy serves students with three
faculties and 16 departments. ASMA is recognized by the
International Maritime Organization (IMO). Considerable
reforms have been carried out at the Academy starting
from 2014, while graduation standards and specializations
of students have been aligned with ASCO’s requirements,
with preference given to quality, but not to quantity, in
education and graduation standards.

Moreover, the Academy operates a Training and
Education Center (TEC) to increase the professional degree
and qualification level of seafarers, and to provide their
certification. The Center is equipped with training facilities
and simulators, and special courses are organized for
the certification of seafarers. Educational programs held
at the Center are totally in line with IMO standards. A
Dynamic Positioning Simulator (DP2) used on the latest
modern vessels was commissioned at the TEC in 2016.

The dynamic positioning system allows total automatic
monitoring of the position and course of the vessel. DP2
plays a great role in training ship drivers engaged in
marine operations. Moreover, TEC has obtained relevant

certificates to enhance the quality of its training. So that,
Bureau Veritas and American Bureau of Shipping (ABS)
have certified 40 training courses held at TEC. At the same
time, The Nautical Institute, has certified its DP Induction
and DP Simulator training courses, as a result of which TEC
has become one of 95 training centers around the world
and the only one in the Caspian region with the authority
to deliver these courses.

Azerbaijan Marine College, which also provides
education within the ASCO structure, was established in
2016. By the decision of the Cabinet of Ministers of the
Republic of Azerbaijan, Azerbaijan Marine Fisheries College
was subordinated to ASCO and served as the basis for the
Azerbaijan Marine College established under ASMA. This
college trains specialists in the fields of operating power
devices, energy equipment and automatic machines, ship
steering, ship repair, and installation of ship equipment.

Supporting business operations:

Apart from the above core operations, ASCO carries out
the below supporting operations:

. Logistics services

. Dry cargo port and agency services
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Logistics services:

ACSC Logistics LLC, operating
within the ASCO structure, provides a
full range of logistics services. ACSC
Logistics transports cargo from the
starting point to the destination in
a safe, timely and effective manner
via a number of transport modes.
Moreover, ACSC Logistics provides
advisory services to consignors
to select the optimal route and
transport mode, as well as providing
documentation, convoy, customs
clearance and insurance services

required during cargo transportation.

Dry cargo port and agency
services:

The Zygh dry cargo port
facility operates within the ASCO
structure with its main purpose
being to organize, operate and
manage dry cargo port activities by
applying advanced techniques and
technologies, providing high-level
port services to local and foreign
shipping companies, carrying out
cargo operations, serving vessels
and passengers, as well as other
relevant port services. The dry cargo
port also provides agency services.
The port provides clearance services
on arrival, during the stay and on
departure of vessels at sea ports
of Azerbaijan. It also provides legal
representation of vessel owners,
freighters or any other individual
operating vessels to the relevant
authorities, as well as organizing and
carrying out financial operations on
their behalf.
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OPERATION ROUTES

ASCO operates both in the Caspian Sea
and beyond, in particular, in the Black and
Mediterranean sea basins. ASCO has 160
years of wide experience in shipping. ASCO
re-established its operations in the basins
beyond the Caspian Sea in 2014. Currently, 14
vessels operate under the Azerbaijani flag on
basins beyond the Caspian Sea: 12 dry cargo
vessels and 2 tankers.

Routes beyond the Caspian Sea:
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Tanker routes in the Caspian Sea

@ Routes of dry cargo vessels in the Caspian Sea
. Ferry routes

@ Routes of Ro-Ro type vessels
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People - Experienced sailing personnel and professional
team are our major assets.

Safety - We continually focus on establishing a safe
working environment, providing high-quality services and
mitigating risks.

Environment - Our aim is to minimize impact on the
environment in all aspects of our operations.

Quality Service - As ASCO, we guarantee high-quality cargo
transportation and diverse specialized offshore services
based on our rich experience.

Continuous Improvement - As a shipping company
with effective management, we pursue continuous
improvement in all aspects of our business to provide
value-added services to our clients.
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To support the harmonious and continuous flow of
international cargo and contribute to Azerbaijan's regional
transportation hub strategy.

To secure the leading position in the Caspian Sea and
expand operations beyond the Caspian Sea.

MOTTO

Your shortest bridge between Europe and Asia.




STRATEGY

STRATEGIC TARGETS

Target 1: Building a modern shipping
company that operates efficiently and
maintains sustainable development.

To maintain the leading position in cargo
transportation in the Caspian Sea

Target 2: Conducting operations To restore and expand operations
in a safe manner and without beyond the Caspian Sea

environmental damage.
To extend the geography of offshore
support services
Target 3: Preparing strong local
personnel. To increase ship repair services to external
enterprises

. . . . To expand and increase the profitability of

Target 4: Expansion and diversification silher aciiviies

of activities.

PURPOSE OF SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

We strive to adhere to sustainable development
principles throughout the value chain. We recognize the
importance of nature and human capital for our activities
and minimizing potential negative impact in this regard is
our long-term goal.

WWWw.acso0.az
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As ASCO, we propose wide specter
of services in trade and offshore
shipping fields in Caspian, Black and
Mediterranean seas. Our main values
are Azerbaijan marine experience
inherited over 160 years; diversified
fleet consisting of various types of
modern vessels; our sensitivity to
the subject of health, safety and
environmental protection.

As a result of effective and
efficient management through the
past 5 years after its establishment,
ASCO has finished each financial year
with satisfactory economic results.
During this period, the net profit of
ASCO has accumulated to 364 million
AZN and EBITDA to 833 million AZN.

ASCO’s management pay a special
attention to the longevity of the
company and put efforts to become
one of significant participants in
global business. That is why one of
the main tasks we currently face is to
direct the obtained economic value
to the renewal of our fleet. During
the past 5 years, the revenue of
our Company from main operations
aggregated 1,976 million AZN, whereas
the amount of investment on vessels
and other fixed assets totaled 659
million AZN. Our goal is not only the
physical renewal of the vessels, but
also ensuring efficient and profitable
operations through diversification
by type of vessels considering
the market demand and regional
diversification. Another task we face

is to ensure profitable operations of
the companies in ASCO’s composition
not relating to its main activity which
emerged as a result of structural
improvement.

We may have a further look to
certain numbers in order to gain a
wider idea on ASCO'’s activity. As a
measurement of liquidity, ASCO’s
current ratio is way above the
world shipping industry average.
Additionally, EBITDA margin for the
reported 5 years’ period is above
several shipping industry giants’
indicators and clearly shows the
effectiveness of the Company’s
activity.

Our Company is keen to take the
opportunities waiting for us ahead to
maintain the leadership position in
the Caspian Sea region and increasing
the market share in international
waters. ASCO enters 2019 with
enthusiasm and all our attention will
be directed to effective management
and growth in the upcoming years.
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BUSINESS MODEL - KEY POINTS

ASCO is a 100% state-owned shipping company.
ASCO agrees the shipping budget for upcoming years
with “Commission on review and approval of budget of
large government companies” and relevantly reports
performance versus budget. ASCO closely cooperates with
other relevant government agencies involved in cargo
transportation to expand domestic and international
shipping, to strengthen the competitiveness and to
improve the transit potential of the country and these
agencies are also stakeholders in the Company’s
operations. Furthermore, as shipping is an international
activity, the Company cooperates with international
organizations and institutions, and joins relevant
international conventions.

ASCO owns the largest and most diversified fleet in
the Caspian Sea. Currently, there are a transportation
fleet providing freight forwarding services and an oil
fleet providing various specialized services to oil and gas
industry within ASCO. In general, our fleet consists of more
than 20 different type and wide profile ships, with a total
number of more than 250. ASCO is considered a unique
shipping company in the world for variety and diversity
of the ships in its fleet. Transportation fleet providing
freight forwarding services consists of tankers, universal
dry cargo vessels, ferries and Ro-Ro type vessels. Oil fleet
providing specialized offshore services to oil industry
is comprised of crane vessels, passenger ships, anchor
handling tug supply vessels, platform supply vessels,
tug boats, diving vessels, firefighting vessels, barges,
geological engineering vessels, underwater pipe-laying

vessels, dredger ships and others.

ASCO serves many local and foreign customers in
transportation of various cargo, including oil and oil
products, containers, dry cargo, wagons and trucks
along the Trans-Caspian corridor. Our commercial
vessels operating in the Caspian Sea realize cargo
transportation among the ports of Caspian Sea countries.
At the same time, ASCO re-established its operations in
international waters beyond the Caspian Sea in 2014, to
reduce dependence on a single market and diversify its
business. Currently, ASCO operates 14 vessels under the
flag of Azerbaijan, including 12 dry cargo vessels and 2
tankers, in the Black and Mediterranean Sea basins. In this
regard, our commercial vessels sailing in the Black and
Mediterranean seas are moored in ports of countries like
Turkey, Italy, France, Greece, Bulgaria, Romania, Russia,
Ukraine, Israel, Algeria, Morocco and Egypt. For more on
this topic, see the Our Fleet and Major Operations and
Operation Routes sections of this report.

In specialized services to oil and gas industry,
main customers of our Company are Azneft Production
Association of State Oil Company of the Azerbaijan
Republic (Azneft PU), SOCAR Logistics DMCC, SOCAR AQS
LLC, Bahar Energy Operation Company, BP, Total, Saipem
and other foreign subcontractors of these companies,
other legal persons and individuals. ASCO is the only
shipping company in the Caspian Sea with a fleet that
totally satisfies the requirements of Azneft PU, our largest
customer. At the same time, participates in several
projects realized in other sectors of Caspian Sea, in

ELTRE S50
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Russia, Kazakhstan and Turkmenistan
sectors, cooperates with Prime
Exerter, Lukoil, Jan De Nul, Maersk
and other large customers.

The main challenges facing our
Company in terms of maintaining the
existing customer base, deepening
business relationships with them and
attracting new customers consist of
the timely upgrade of our fleet with
modern ships and the development of
our people.

To upgrade our fleet, 20 new and
modern vessels were purchased
by ASCO in last 5 years, including 8
dry cargo vessels and 1 tanker for
transportation fleet; 1tug supply
vessel, the largest in the Caspian Sea,
6 supply and tug boats, one port tug
boat and three passenger ships for
our specialized oil fleet.

As another step towards the
modernization of our fleet, one of
our main partners, Baku Shipyard
LLC, following an order from our
Company, is currently building
four tankers and two Ro-Pax ferry-
boats. By order of the President of

the Republic of Azerbaijan, 30% of
financing of two tankers and two
ferries out of these vessels’, and 50%
of two tankers’ construction is done
at the expense of funds allocated for
public investments. The remaining
part is financed by our Company’s
internal resources. In near future,
within the plan of modernization of
our fleet, it is planned to place an
order for constructing additional 2-6
vessels in Baku Shipyard. Let us note
that, to keep the fleet in line with
requirements of cargo owners and
regional oil and gas projects realized
or planned in perspective, the fleet
renewal plan till 2025 is prepared by
ASCO and proposed for discussion
with relevant government bodies.
Zygh Shipbuilding and Construction
Yard, one of the Company’s structural
divisions, has started construction
of a number of vessels for the
Caspian Sea Oil Fleet under the fleet
renewal plan for the coming years.

A noteworthy detail is that these
vessels are designed by professionals
from another structural division of
the Company, Caspian Sea Transport
Project Research and Scientific
Investigation Institute.

o i i,
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One of the structural divisions
of ASCO, Azerbaijan State
Marine Academy (ASMA) ensures
development of young seafarers in
Azerbaijan and provides bachelors
and masters education on Navigation
and Shipboards mechanics faculties.
Training, industrial and cruising
practice on vessels is provided to the
students of Academy. Additionally,
Marine College is also operated within
the structure of Academy. ASMA
is recognized by the International
Maritime Organization (IMO) and is
included in the global higher marine
education system. At the same time,
the Academy has become a member
of the International Association
of Marine Universities and the
diplomas and certificates issued
by the Academy are internationally
recognized. Two graduates of ASMA
have done masters on “Shipping
management and logistics” and
“Maritime management” specialties
in World Maritime University
located in Malmo, Sweden and this
education has been sponsored by
ASCO within the 2017 Scholarship
Program. Opportunities are created
to undertake internship both in
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ASCO ships and world’s leading and reputable shipping
companies to the students and graduates distinguishing
in education and personal qualities and showing higher
academic results. That said, our two employees who are
ASMA graduates are undertaking internship in Columbia
Shipmanagement Ltd and other three employees who
are ASMA graduates are also expected to participate in
the same program. It is worth noting that the Chairman
of ASCO issues a letter of guarantee for employment
and scholarship to students who have excelled in their
education in ASMA.

Training and Education Center (TEC) serving to
increase the professionalism and qualification level of
seafarers and providing their certification, operates
within ASMA. TEC's main goal is to organize training and
certification for seafarers of both the Sea Transport
Fleet and Caspian Sea Oil Fleet. At the same time, TEC
provides training and certification for the employees
of other shipping companies. In 2016 a new dynamic
positioning system (DP) simulator was launched in TEC.
Dynamic positioning systems allow to fully control the
position and course of the vessel automatically, using its
own propellers and thrusters. Bureau Veritas Center and
the American Bureau of Shipping have issued relevant
certificates for 40 training courses held at the Center.

In 2017 The Nautical Institute, UK, audited the TEC and
certified its DP Induction and DP Simulator training
courses. Thus, TEC has become one of 95 centers in the
world and the only training center in the Caspian Sea
authorized to deliver these training courses.

ASCO’s wide range of activities necessitates
cooperation with both local and foreign companies in
supply chain. The supply chain comprises domestic and
international suppliers of goods and services. Suppliers
are selected based on the Company’s procurement
guidelines with the significant focus on aspects such as
business ethics, anti-corruption, transparency, etc. Let us
note that, the procurement regulations of the Company,
as well as, the information about tenders for purchase
of materials and services within the Company, are
transparently issued in the official internet site of ASCO.
The evaluation of suppliers is carried out collectively by
the Procurement Committee of ASCO. The organization
and management of the procurement process with
suppliers are regulated by legislation of the Republic
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of Azerbaijan, as well as ASCO’s Procurement Committee
Regulations, ASCO’s Rules on Organizing and Management
of Procurement, bid invitation documents, the
procurement agreement template and the final protocol
on tender results. ASCO’s supply chain of domestic and
foreign firms comprises of companies offering shipbuilding
and repair, construction, supply of materials, engineering,
communication, port, insurance and other services.

ASCO strives to achieve mutually beneficial cooperation
with suppliers and mainly prefers local suppliers. Local
suppliers are companies registered in the Republic of
Azerbaijan and bearing tax liability in accordance with the
laws of Azerbaijan. In 2016 and 2017 the amount spent on
domestic suppliers averaged 67% of total supply costs.
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BUSINESS MODEL OF ASCO
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The success of business activities
directly depends on preparation
of highly qualified specialists in
management and operations, and
improvement of staff potential. That
is why putting human potential to
the core of development, directing
this process to human, addressing
existing problems, also clearing the
way to spiritual revival are main aims
in the world today.

The issue of staff preparation
for sustainable development is a
priority in our Company, supported
both by the government and the
Company. Continuous high and
occupational education system for
the development of shipping industry
is created and continiously improved
in the country. So that, attention is
given to high qualification of staff
and their productivity levels, as
shipping is a human capital oriented
field and requires a great deal of
labor work. Currently, actions on
preparation, re-qualification and
improving professionalism levels of
staff working in management and
operations, are taken continiously.

Let us take a short look at main
achievements in HR sphere during the
5years since ASCO's inception:

- Organizational structure and
HR system of the Company is set;

- HR strategy and short,
medium and long-term targets are
established;

- HR policy, regulations,
procedures, instructions and internal
rules are written;

- HR functions like
recruitment, planning, training
and development, performance
evaluation, working with talented
youth and etc. are organized;

- Significant work is done
towards automatization and
application of processes and HR
reporting system.

WWW.acso0.az










FIVE YEARS REPORT

RELATIONSHIP WITH PERSONNEL

We believe that employees who are aligned with the
values of ASCO and serve our mission and goal, should
develop together with the Company in the long term. We
have created working conditions that motivate employees
and promote diversity. Career development planning is
used in our Company to provide employees with both
material and intellectual motivation. The emphasis is
on working conditions that promote equality and safety,
maintain a balance between the personal and professional
lives of employees. Employee-employer relations in our
Company are based on mutual trust and respect.

The Company has created a working environment
that creates equal opportunities for each employee to
raise their professional level and develop their careers.
Necessary processes have been set up in the Company
and further work is being done for the recruitment of the
best and development of future leaders. One of the most
important factors in the future success of the Company is
the retention and appointment of the best employees to
managerial positions.

That is why our Company attaches great importance
to the professional development of our employees. Our
key priorities are the preparation of strong Azerbaijani
seafarers, promotion of the maritime profession in
the country, improving the quality of education at
our academy, continuous professional development
of staff, identifying high-potential young people and
appointing them to leading positions. For this purpose,
internationally recognized seafarers are regularly invited
to train our staff at the expense of ASCO, and special
projects are implemented to encourage young employees
to gain practice with international marine companies
or on our ships in international waters. Under the ASCO
Scholarship Program, graduates of ASMA are sent to
prestigious universities around the world every year to
receive a master’s degree. In addition, a career center
has been established at our academy, which provides
information about students and alumni, and through
which ASCO is closely involved in their future professional
lives. Students who are distinguished in education at our
academy are provided with individual scholarships and
jobs after their graduation. This is a clear example of how
the Company prioritizes educated young sailors in shaping
human resources.

Keeping employees highly motivated is one of
the key priorities of the management. Employees are
regularly evaluated on an individual basis. As a result,
the development needs of employees are identified and
measures are taken in this area. Moreover, employees
receive bonuses and material rewards. Specialists
distinguished in their fields are also awarded with
certificate of honor.
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In addition to the above factors, our Company
attaches great importance to providing employees with
effective and healthy leisure time and establishing
friendly relations in social life outside the workplace. So
that, ASCO regularly organizes sports events, including
swimming, football and other sports competitions, as well
as team trips. These activities help to increase sincerity
and confidence, along with professional relationships
among employees.
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CREATING VALUE AND TRANSPARENCY IN ACTIVITIES

After ASCO was formed, the process of merging state shipping entities was smoothly done and unified synergy in the
maritime industry was obtained. The Company'’s Strategic Development Program is prepared, covering works towards
transparency, optimization and diversification, taking the principle of fairness as a basis.

We pay a lot of attention to the application of software in all aspects of our business to ensure the effective
management of the Company. With that in mind, we established a central corporate network with fiber optic channels
in 2014 and installed SAP ERP system the same year. Now, we use SAP ERP system modules including finance, human
resources, material resources management, sales, cost controlling and treasury. We began freight transportation
programs and established a central dispatch service. We have developed a unified electronic HR database for the
management of human resources. Electronic ticket sales, electronic procurement system and electronic document
management systems were introduced. We have developed the Company’s new website and internal portal.

In order to optimize operations and direct the focus towards key development prospects, the Company has spun off
structural divisions beyond its core business to the relevant authorities. Since 2014, ASCO has delivered to the relevant
authorities

- housing and public utilities comprising 168 housing units,

- the seafarers’ cultural center,

- the Danizchi auxiliary agricultural enterprise with an area of 1,638 hectares of agricultural land and an
administrative building with a total area of 1,027 square meters, and

- the Central Seamen Hospital.

The Company maintains its accounting records in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
Company’s financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS are audited by EY each year. In addition, ASCO has
prepared sustainable development reports covering its economic, social and environmental performance. These reports
are also audited by EY. In order to make these statements available to public, they are published on our website, which
is constantly updated.

Since July 2014, international company American Bureau of Shipping (ABS) was invited and ASCO was audited in order
to assess its internal management system and to verify compliance of its activities with the SMS (Safety Management
System) and international ISO standards. GAP analysis was carried out by ABS and a new Quality Safety Management
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System was applied as a result of this analysis. The new system was jointly developed by the QHSE Department and ABS
Consulting. This system incorporates the requirements and recommendations of international management standards
such as ISM-2010, SOLAS, MARPOL, 1SO-14001, 1ISO-18001, ISO-9001 and 1SO-50001. Compliance of internal Quality Safety
Management System with international standards was approved and ISO certificates have been obtained following the
audit conducted in September 2015.

In 2016, Fitch Ratings analyzed the financial and business models of the Company, determined the liquidity of the
Company and sustainable ability to meet its credit obligations, and provided a positive credit rating.

The Company performs attestation of its floating staff on a regular basis and provides special international training
to increase the capabilities of managers and supervisors. In that respect, ASCO closely cooperates with well-known
international companies - ABS, the Azerbaijan Professional Finance Managers Association, EY and BIMCO Business
Academies.

Since its establishment, the Company has regularly revised salaries of employees, and the wages of floating and
coastal staff have increased multiple times. In October 2017, the Company started and internally financed construction
of a 472-apartment residential complex to provide housing to those seafarers and their families who have queued for
accommodation since the 1980s. In parallel with this, in order to improve the working conditions of employees, a new
administrative building for our Company has been under construction since 2017 near Flag Square — one of the most
picturesque parts of Baku.

The steps taken by ASCO since its inception have helped the Company to take and maintain a leading position in the
domestic market and open up to international markets. Using new technologies, modernizing our fleet and increasing the
skills and knowledge of our employees, we provide our customers with quality and reliable services. Thanks to flexible
and timely management solutions, we have increased our profitability since inception and succeeded in becoming a
renowned modern international shipping company.

The Six Capital model you see below is one of the tools used to demonstrate how the Company has used its key
resources for production. Six Capital is divided into financial, industrial, intellectual, human, social and natural
categories, and descriptions of each of these capitals, the main available resources, and what the Company has achieved
from available resources are given below.
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ASCO - SIX CAPITAL MODEL

Capitals Description Resources Outcomes
« Equity share *Income
Fi - Economic resources financing * Debt financing * Project financing
thancia business « Undistributed - Profit for
earnings shareholders
Economic - Transportation fleet | Transportation services
. + Offshore support + Technological fleet
Manufactured Profitable infrastructure fleet services
* Yards + Ship repair and
construction
+ A world-famous * Innovative and special
Knowledge and intellectual brand offers to customers
property used to enhance * Robust knowledge .
.. base « Proper business
Intellectual the competitive advantage of ¢
o divi - Qualified skills managemen
individuals and develop the
business » Approved systems
and structures
- Employee safety and
Knowledge, skills, experience, and | *Qualified workers well-being
judgment of people who help to ) -lTrdainingc}n il - Personal and
Human - oapi nowledge and skills professional
achieve the organization’s goals development development
* Indirect protection of
. workers' family members
Social
Relationships for raising individual - Stakeholder » Mutual benefit for
and collective well-being among engagement stakeholders
stakeholders. This capital includes: « Strategic + Job opportunities
relationships . ;
« Distributed norms, common values P Increased community
L sustainability
. and principles
Social « Customer health and
- Significant stakeholders, as well as safety
the strength the Company has used . Anti-discrimination
to maintain trust with customers, measures and other
R . human rights support
suppliers, businesses partners and measures
other stakeholders
Renewable and non-renewable
environmental resources used to Mitigating negative
supply services and goods that environmental
support the current and future impact (emissions,
development of the organization. Natural resources waste)
Environmental Natural These include:
« Air, water, soil, minerals and forests
- Biodiversity and ecosystem health
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The concepts of quality, health, safety and
environment have been centralized under one
management system and operated as the QHSE
department since the establishment of ASCO. During these
5years serious reforms were made and useful results were
achieved in each direction. The followings may be noted
as an example to the achievements:

- Certification of operations of the fleet’s main type
vessels based on international ISO standards;

- Provision of personal protection equipment for
working in production to office and sea staff;

- Renewal of procedures and instructions in
modern format in the offices;

- Taking urgent preventive measures based on the
lessons learnt from timely investigation of incidents and
potential dangers;

- Identifying and improving environments that may
harm human organism;

- Providing trainings on and propagating special
policies in all offices of ASCO for the sake of safety and
environmental protection;

- Utilization, recycling and recording based on
sorting of 90% of the waste from vessels and shore
objects and etc.

QHSE policy values the following principles in the
offices of ASCO:

- Ensuring healthy and safe working environment
via benefiting from healthy and safe working experiences;

- Preventing pollution in the sea and ports;

- Taking detective and preventive measures against
all identified risks;

- Evaluating the results of audit and inspections;

- Analyzing the reasons of non-compliances and
assessing the effectiveness of adjustments made.
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BUSINESS GOALS

After the establishment of ASCO, based on Mr. President’s instructions on the development of shipping industry, the
Company’s development targets were set and a Strategic Development Program was prepared to reach these targets.
The Strategic Development Program of the Company was approved in 2014. Afterwards, strategic development priorities
of the Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping were identified through the decree of the Cabinet of Ministers of the Republic of
Azerbaijan dated 11 September 2015. The State Program for the Development of Shipping in the Republic of Azerbaijan
was approved by decree of the President of the Republic of Azerbaijan in November 2016.

The documents mentioned above comprise the basis of the strategic plan and strategic targets of ASCO. The
following short, medium and long-term targets and objectives are identified by ASCO:

Target 1: Building a modern
shipping company that
operates efficiently and

maintains sustainable
development

Target 2: Conducting
operations in a safe manner
and without environmental

damage
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Objective 1.1: Continious improvement of the centralized
corporate governance system

Objective 1.2: Application of software necessary for
efficient management

Objective 1.3: Continuing international certification in shipping
operations and application of leading international experince

Objective 1.4: Optimization of costs, structure and
operations and ensuring efficiency

Objective 1.5: Transformation of the Company into an efficiently operating
commercial organization which brings dividends to the shareholders

Objective 1.6: Ensuring transparency in the
operations

Objective 2.1: Improvement of QHSE service

Objective 2.2: Training of personnel on the requirements of
QHSE standards, educating them on this field

Objective 2.3: Ensuring environmental protection complies with
International Environmental Management Standards in order to
prevent onshore and offshore pollution
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BUSINESS GOALS

Target 3: Preparing strong

local personnel

Target 4: Expansion and
diversification of activities
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Objective 3.1: Preparing strong local nautical personnel and
promotion of the seafarer profession in the country

Objective 3.2: Continious development of professionalism of the
personnel and improving their prosperity

Objective 4.1: To maintain the leading position in cargo
transportation in the Caspian Sea

Objective 4.2: To restore and expand operations
beyond the Caspian Sea

Objective 4.3: To expand the geography of offshore

support services

Objective 4.4: To increase ship repair services for
outside companies

Objective 4.5: To extend other business areas and increase
profitability




STRATEGY

SOCIAL ACTIVITIES

ASCO acknowledges its corporate responsibility to the
public. ASCO’s social activities mainly cover the following
directions:

- Financial support and charity;

- Welfare of personnel and health support;

- Support to foster children and veterans;

- Youth support;

- Promotion of the sailor profession in the country
and support to sailors’ education.

Based on ASCOQ'’s Statue on Providing Financial Support
approved in 2014, financial support is provided to orphan
children, families in difficult financial conditions, war
veterans and disabled persons. During the 5 years period
since ASCQ’s inception till the end of 2018, 2,191,000 AZN
financial support is provided in accordance with the
mentioned Statue.

Providing food support 5 times a year on holidays to
families consisting of 3,350 internally displaced persons
located in Goranboy region, financial support &4 times a
year to ASCO’s families whose members were killed in war,
blood donation actions among employees, release of “Gizil
gul” park for use, providing housing to those seafarers and
their families who have queued for accommodation (see
“Creating value and transparency in activities” section of
this report for more details), support to the development
of sport in the country, including sponsorship to “Sabail”
football club and Sailing Federation and etc. social
activities can be provided as examples of other work done
by ASCO in social sphere.

Please refer to the Company’s Sustainable
Development Report for more details on ASCO'’s social
activities.
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ASCO AT
A GLANCE

OPERATING INDICATORS

Cargo transportation volume (thousand tons)

Type of vessel 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Liquid cargo 4,513.8 4,064.4 2,411.6 4,298.6 5,573.2
Dry cargo 961.9 1,025 853.1 475.5 618.3
Ro-Ro/Ferry 2,760.4 3,257.9 2,537 1,851.7 3,745.1
Total 8,236.1 8,347.3 5,801.7 6,625.8 9,936.6
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Specialized offshore fleet indicators (hours)

Type of vessel 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Crane vessels 74,733 73,405 66,117 60,757 52,714
Passenger ships 89,145 89,903 89,505 85,746 89,979

Anchor handling tug supply

vessels (AHTSV) 45,164 39,622 48,651 55,405 52,814
Platform supply vessels (PSV) 7,661 7,358 3,881 4,654 4,663
Tug boats 6,264 7,368 5,628 12,392 6,117
Port-tug boats 1,620 1,272 996 3,841 7,433
Diving vessels 34,048 36,949 39,649 27,420 27,993
Firefighting vessels 17,680 20,875 20,181 24,133 27,218
Barges 9,648 16,976 19,194 19,558 13,318

Liquid cargo vessels

(tankers) 11,937 13,153 12,883 13,450 10,714
Geological survey vessels 17,094 14,633 16,970 12,513 9,562
Underwater pipe layer vessels 3,333 3,773 7,029 4,149 4,181
Cable layer supply vessel 0 4,641 2,821 2,746 3,056
Surface cleaner and fecal

. 15,103 13,200 12,936 4,656 1,080
water collector ships
Supporting boats 169,862 176,525 185,272 178,391 182,725
Total hours worked 503,292 519,653 531,713 509,811 493,567
Dredger vessel and convoys,
m3 of soil 87,450 352,750 154,720 208,860 265,600
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FINANCIAL INDICATORS

5-year outlook (for more information, please refer to the audited financial statements that are an integral part of this
report)

Profit and loss (in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats)

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Revenue 452,171 474,305 454,925 331,642 262,480
Cost of sales (294,242) (265,101) (266,762) (224,459) (241,981)
Gross profit 157,929 209,204 188,163 107,183 20,499
General and administrative expenses  (52,461) (52,120) (60,945) (36,471) (34,737)
Social expenses (12,132) (5,103) (4,031) (2,975) (1,961)
Other operating income 33,253 44,390 45,480 30,192 39,159
Other operating expenses (48,114) (52,105) (18,288) (9,307) (6,079)
Loss on disposal of vessels,
property, plant and equipment (200) (837) (1,245) (575) (2,620)
Foreign exchange (loss)/ gain (692) (3,888) 886 4,864 -
Operating profit 77,583 139,541 150,020 92,911 14,261
Finance costs (1,914) (1,410) (1,596) (2,145) (1,216)
Profit before income tax 75,669 138,131 148,424 90,766 13,045
Income tax (expense)/benefit (23,207) (38,000) (40,158) (21,769) 20,971
Net profit 52,462 100,131 108,266 68,997 34,016

Balance sheet (in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats)

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Non-current assets 890,890 767,440 668,835 621,948 643,953
Current assets 305,152 262,711 232,831 181,895 190,857
Total assets 1,196,042 1,030,151 901,666 803,843 834,810
Non-current liabilities 69,484 32,001 34,768 40,317 46,897
Current liabilities 135,570 74,610 59,489 70,156 173,574
Total liabilities 205,054 106,611 94,257 110,473 220,471
Total equity 990,988 923,540 807,409 693,370 614,339
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CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE SYSTEM
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In order to ensure transparency
and efficiency of operations,
application of international corporate
governance practice and organizing
its operations in compliance with
international standards have been
the focus of attention since the
establishment of ASCO. In that
context, strategic development
priorities of our Company were
identified and approved by the
Decree of the Cabinet of Ministers
of the Republic of Azerbaijan. In line
with strategic development priorities,
short-term targets covering a 1-3
years period, medium-term targets
covering a 3-6 years period and long-
term targets covering a 6-10 years

period have been identified, and the
Company’s Strategic Development
Program has been prepared. The
Strategic Development Program

is regularly reviewed, targets and
objectives are constantly updated.
Furthermore, the State Program
for the Development of Shipping in
the Republic of Azerbaijan in 2016-
2020 was approved by the Decree
of the President of the Republic

of Azerbaijan in November 2016.
Execution of the State Program
ensures timely renewal of the fleet
with the required ships and step-
by-step implementation of work
on ASCO’s strategic development
priorities.




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We drafted and adopted regulatory documents to Transparent and sustainable development
meet the requirements of the international corporate

governance system:
. International Financial Reporting Standards are

implemented at ASCO. Financial statements prepared
. Board of Directors Regulations in accordance with these standards and audited by
international audit firm EY are published on the Company’s
website in accordance with transparency principles and
. Code of Corporate Governance presented to relevant stakeholders on an annual basis.

. Company’s Strategic Plan

. Internal discipline rules . The American Bureau of Shipping (ABS) has
audited ASCO’s internal QHSE management system and
certified its compliance with international governance
. Anti-Corruption Guidelines standards. 5-year ISO and ISM compliance certificates
were issued to the Company, Azerbaijan State Marine
Academy and Training and Education Center.

. Code of Business Ethics

. Regulations on Hotline Communication Center
Activities and Internal Investigations
. Fitch Ratings agency analyzed ASCO’s business

. Poli Discl fFi ialand O ti . S . -
oficy on Disclosure of Financiatand bperating model, determined its liquidity and sustainable ability to

Results . . .. . . .
meet its credit obligations, and assigned a credit rating to
. Disclosure Guidelines the Company.
. Statute of the Public Consultations Board . In order to enable personnel to master the

principles of international corporate governance
system and to improve the level of their proficiency,

. Internal Audit documents ASCO regularly organizes trainings in cooperation with
internationally recognized companies.

. QHSE and HR documents

. Risk Management documents
. Sustainable Development Reports covering a
period of two years are prepared in our Company and

A.SCO.is comm.itted to ensuring transparency and openly issued in the official internet page of ASCO. Please
f:on5|der|ng th.e views of stakeholdgrs vyhen ma.klng refer to “Sustainable development” section fo this report
important decisions. Based on leading international for more details on Sustainable Development Reports.

corporate governance principles, the Company has
established the following relevant committees to ensure
collective decision-making in its operations:

. Procurement Committee
. Risk Management Committee

. Remuneration Committee

WWW.acso0.az
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. Work performed on Information Technologies:

. establishment of a unified central computer
network via fiber optic channels covering all departments
of the Company;

. implementation of the SAP ERP system;

. establishment of a central electronic dispatch
system;

. application of a fleet positioning program which
allows the Company to determine the location of ships on
an electronic map at any time;

. application of electronic document management
system;

WWW.acs0.az

. continuous communication of ships with coastal
units;

. replacement of old paper-based maps used in
ships with electronic maps;

. establishment of an electronic ticket sale system.

Information Disclosure Regulations approved in 2016
are designed to ensure the transparency and publicity
of the Company’s operations, the availability of relevant
information to all stakeholders, and everyone’s equal right
to obtain such relevant information, as well as to exclude
inaccurate information about the Company and enhance
the Company'’s reputation. Information is disclosed




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

through the official ASCO website and other online resources, press agencies,
television and radio channels. Pursuant to Information Disclosure Regulations,
the Company discloses the below information:

. financial indicators for the period;

. borrowed finances;

. significant agreements with relevant parties;

. the Company’s management bodies and officials;
. shareholders;

. dividends;

. the acquisition or alienation of a significant share;
. conclusions on the Company'’s activities;

. Sustainable development results.

Furthermore, in 2016 the Company approved the policy on disclosure of
financial and operating results. The main objectives of this policy are:

. ensuring a unified approach to the disclosure of financial and
operating results and related procedures;

. ensuring transparency and the removal of inaccurate information that
may damage the Company’s image;

. ensuring that all stakeholders, including the public, have full access
to information on the financial state of the Company and have a complete and
accurate view of the Company;

. more accurate formation of economic policy, financial and economic
activities of the Company and precise definition of future priorities;

. attracting potential investors and partners to develop specific
projects.

To improve the existing corporate governance system, in 2016 we engaged international auditor and consultant firm
EY to assess the current state of the corporate governance system and develop a roadmap containing improvement
measures. All steps envisaged in the roadmap were successfully implemented in 2016-2018. Business process maps
were compiled for all major business processes and sub-processes in the Company, and the internal control matrix was
improved taking into account potential risks. Further, the Promotion and Remuneration Policy was approved in 2016,
key performance indicators (KPIs) were established, and a performance-based remuneration system was applied from
January 1, 2017.

In continuation of large-scale corporate governance related projects, we initiated a procedure for obtaining a
corporate governance rating for the Company. To this end, international audit company Deloitte reviewed our corporate
governance system, existing documents and their level of operation, strategic and other important decision-making
processes, risk management, internal control and audit, and the level of transparency in the Company as of the end
of 2017, taking into account both internal and external factors. As a result, the Company’s performance was positively
evaluated.

§ é WWWw.acso0.az
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REMUNERATION SYSTEM

ASCO places special emphasis on staff development
and motivation. As part of the ongoing work to improve its
corporate governance system, ASCO has implemented a
bonus system based on employees’ annual performance,
as widely accepted in international practice. The main
goal of implementing this system is to achieve continuous
efficiency and increase productivity.

Initially, the Motivation and Remuneration Policy was
approved in September 2016. Subsequently, we developed
a balanced key performance indicators (KPI) system
and KPI scorecards to achieve the strategic goals and
objectives of the Company in accordance with this Policy.

Three levels of KPIs have been developed, corporate,
functional and individual.

WWWw.acso.az

ASCO applies the KPI system to:

. encourage the Company’s
management to develop and improve,
and to increase the effectiveness and
efficiency of operations;

. ensure the attraction and
retention of high-quality staff in the
Company;

. align shareholders’ interests
with those of management of the
Company;

. ensure the long-term and
sustainable development of the
Company.




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We also highlight that the
Cabinet of Ministers of the

The KPI system must: Republic of Azerbaijan was
entrusted by the Decree of the
. correspond and be linked to the Company’s development strategy; President of the Republic of
. .. . . Azerbaijan dated September 5,
. be aimed at achieving strategic goals and objectives; 2016, On Additional Measures

to Increase Efficiency in the
Activities of Legal Entities with
a State Controlling Stake, to
develop a remuneration system
based on performance and
the corresponding regulatory
act for managing bodies of
The Company established the Remuneration Committee to ensure the legal entities. The Motivation
implementation of measures stipulated in the Motivation and Remuneration and Remuneration Policy
Policy and to manage the process. The Remuneration Committee updates the U pElE g de ColEs 0 2.

Lo . . . . the KPI system applied ensure
Motlvatl.on and Remungratlon Policy to reflect the current 5|tu§t|on, makes the implementation of these
suggestions on budgeting and performs other regulatory functions. The measures.
performance based remuneration system (the KPI system) has been applied

since January 1, 2017.

. be transparent;

. be consistent with current market conditions and the best
international practice.

WWW.acso0.az
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INTERNAL
CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT
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The Internal Audit Department of
ASCO reports directly to the Board
of Directors. Internal auditors of
the Company are involved in the
audit of various fields as well as
providing advisory services. These
services are approved by the Board
of Directors and are subject to the
Company’s annual internal audit
plan. The audit plan is prepared
for the next year at the end of
each year. Recommendations are
made to eliminate inconsistencies
discovered during the audit, and
regular monitoring of actions taken
with regard to discrepancies is
conducted. Internal Audit Policy and
compliance of internal audit reports
with International Standards for the
Professional Practice of Internal

Auditing are verified by international
audit company PwC.

All major business processes,
their subprocesses and process
owners are identified, and maps of
all identified business processes are
drawn up. Risks have been identified
in the business processes, and the
Risks and Control Mechanisms Matrix
has been designed by identifying
appropriate control mechanisms
for these risks. The Internal Audit
Department checks the compliance
of activities with business processes,
monitors the compliance with control
mechanisms in the processes, and
regularly evaluates internal control
mechanisms.




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Risk Committee has also
been established along with the Risk
Management and Insurance Division
to form the Risk Management System ;
(RIS) at ASCO and also to effectively e
manage the risks inherent to the
Company. The composition of the
Committee shall be determined
by the Chairman of the Company.

At quarterly meetings of the
Committee, issues related to the risk
management process are discussed,
and risk management measures

are assessed. At the same time,

the Corporate Risks Map of ASCO

is reviewed by the Committee and
submitted to the Chairman of the
Company for approval.

The Risk Committee collects
and analyzes information and
explanations for the risks that have
occurred during a certain period
of time. In order to prevent the
recurrence of the same risk, this
risk is reviewed and updated on
the basis of the scorecard data.
Much attention is paid to the
development and regular update of
the Corporate Risks Map. In addition,
several training courses have been
organized to improve the Company’s
management’s, as well as personnel’s
knowledge of risk management.

The Company’s Risk Management
System is based on the Enterprise
Risk Management (ERM) methodology
of COSO (the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission). This system
is integrated into the Company’s
performance and strategy and
its purpose is to ensure that the
Company achieves its goals.

WWW.acso0.az
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SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

RESULTS IN
SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

10
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Our Company pays special
attention to sustainable development
and work in this area is a key focus
of attention. Starting from 2014,
the Company decided to prepare
and publish sustainability reports
covering a 2-year period reflecting
achievements in sustainable
development, and to gain external
assurance for such reports. In
previous reports, for 2014-2015 and
2016-2017, achieving efficiency in
environmental, social, economic,
health and human resources
management has been identified as
one of the main goals. The Company’s
business is managed in a way to
achieve positive results in the listed
areas, and to expand business

activities by providing high-quality
services.

ASCO works towards maintaining
sustainable development in all major
operations and business lines. The
regular renewal of our fleets that
provide freight and specialized
services, fuel savings as a result
of more efficient use of ships, the
collection of waste from ships,
plants and other production facilities
and its transfer to the relevant
agencies, continuous development
of personnel and other similar work,
are all examples of the integration of
sustainable development principles
into ASCO'’s daily operations. At the
same time, the Company’s Strategic




SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

Plan focuses on its sustainable development. The
Strategic Plan has set targets for sustainable development
too, and the Company’s management has set activities in
line with these targets.

Personnel are the main value of ASCO. Strong,
professional and competent staff are the foundation
of sustainable development. ASCO recognizes its
responsibility for its employees and protects the rights of
employees in accordance with relevant local legislation
and international corporate governance standards, as well
as ensures their social and material wellbeing.

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Workforce,
people

8,613 8,921 8,621 8,790 9,123

ASCO’s Regulation on Financial Aid was approved
in 2014 to provide financial support to people in need
within the framework of the Company’s corporate social
responsibility. In accordance with this Regulation, material
assistance is provided to homeless children, financially
disadvantaged families, war veterans, and persons with
disabilities. The following is a summary of the number of
people who have been financially assisted by ASCO:

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
i‘feae?ans"ort 142 120 110 120 76
Eﬁeserf[ian sea Ol 240 196 104 67 28
Coastline entities 408 440 271 179 53
Ex-Workers 50 62 48 40 1
Outsiders 7 7 18 4 5
Total 847 825 551 410 173

ASCO attaches special importance to the safety of
all work carried out in the course of its business so
that it does not cause injuries to employees, or any
other health threat or accident. Management in this
area is conducted in line with the laws of the Republic
of Azerbaijan, international conventions and ASCO’s
internal documents. With the introduction of the QHSE
Security Quality Management System, adherence to
conventions of SOLAS, MARPOL, STCW and the ILO is
ensured. In order to ensure the safety of the operations,
procedures are being implemented in accordance with the
requirements of the Security Quality Management System
to continuously identify hazards of specific operations, to
conduct risk assessments, to ensure regular monitoring
and take measurements, and to ensure proper oversight.
Precautionary measures are taken to prevent hazards
triggered by employee behavior or other factors that may
adversely affect the safety of our employees.

The protection of the environment is important not
only for the achievement of sustainable development
goals, but also for the preservation of the biological
environment we live and operate in, so that we can
bequeath it to future generations and build a healthy
future. Minimizing the environmental impact, including
waste and emissions, of our fleet and coastline entities,
compliance with ecological requirements during the
retirement of vessels and other fixed assets, as well as
using water and energy resources efficiently, are our main
priorities. The table below illustrates our energy intensity
ratio (using one thousand kWh of electricity per worker):

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Electricity usage per
employee (thousands 2.91  2.81
of kWh)

2.94 3.28 2.96

You can read more about sustainable development
in our Sustainable Development Reports published on
ASCO'’s official website and audited by international audit
firm EY.

WWW.acso0.az
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TARIYEL MIRZAYEV - HEAD OF STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT
AND INVESTMENT PROJECTS DEPARTMENT
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After ASCO was established at the end of 2013, based
on Mr. President’s recommendations and assignments,
short, medium and long-term targets were set and
Strategic Development Program was prepared and
approved. Besides, ASCO’s strategic development targets
were approved by the decree of the Cabinet of Ministers
in 2015 and “the State Program on the Development of
Shipping in the Republic of Azerbaijan for the period of
2016-2020" was approved by the Decree of the President of
the Republic of Azerbaijan in 2016. During last 5 years, the
Company has established its activity in accordance with
the mentioned documents and towards execution of the
allocated targets and tasks. The Company continues the
work in this direction.

According to the strategy, the Company’s sustainable
development, profitability and transparency in all aspects
of its activities are ensured. A strong team is formed, and
itis ensured that operations are done in a safe manner
and without harming the environment.

Capital repair of vessels and renewal of the fleet
take a significant place in ASCO’s Strategic Development
Program. During last 5 years 20 new vessels were bought
and put in operations by ASCO and currently 6 more
vessels are built in Baku Shipyard. Additionally, fleet
renewal plan is prepared and according to this plan more
than 70 various type new vessels are expected to be built
in next 10 years.

According to the Company'’s target of diversifying the
activities and decreasing the dependence on one market,
ASCO has reestablished its operations in waters beyond
the Caspian Sea in 2014 and currently operates 14 vessels
under the flag of Azerbaijan in Black and Mediterranean
Sea.

Since 2014, an international corporate governance system
is applied in ASCO and this system is based on transparency,
fairness and reliable partner principles. Each year ASCO’s
financial statements are prepared based on international
standards, audited by international audit company and
issued to the public on the official internet page of the
Company. At the same time, sustainable development
reports covering two-years’ period are prepared and placed
in our official internet page after an international audit.
Various electronic systems are applied in the Company,
increasing efficiency of the operations and assisting in
making prompt business decisions. In 2015 the Company’s
international certification works were finished and 5-years
ISO and ISM compliance certificates were issued to ASCO
by The American Bureau of Shipping. In 2016 the Company
received a credit rating for the first time in its history.

Since 2017 a renumeration system based on performance
results (KPI system) is successfully applied in ASCO. In
2018 ASCO'’s corporate governance system was analyzed by
an international advisory company and the Company was
presented a positive corporate governance rating.

ASCO closely cooperates with relevant bodies
participating in cargo transportation of our country, as
well as other countries and realizes various cooperative
projects in order to realize Azerbaijan’s transit potential. At
the same time, within the frames of the Strategic Roadmap
on the Development of Logistics and Trade in the Republic
of Azerbaijan approved by the decree of Mr. President, ASCO
is realizing projects with relevant bodies of Azerbaijan in
order to increase the transit cargo volumes passing through
Azerbaijan.

WWW.acso0.az
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
ON THE ACTIVITIES OF THE
COMPANY

With this report, we, as the management
of ASCO, intend to highlight how our
Company has been creating value so far and
how we continue to do so. We are proud
to demonstrate that we have been able to
manage our resources effectively towards
achieving our strategic objectives.

Azerbaijan’s shipping industry has
undergone huge modernization following
the decree of the President of the Republic
of Azerbaijan dated October 22, 2013. 100%
state owned ASCO was created. Although
the restructuring process overlapped with
economic challenges in the world caused by
the significant drop in global oil prices, the
management of the Company achieved better
efficiency and effectiveness by turning the
challenges into opportunities. By optimally

WWw.acso.az
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managing allocated government subsidies,
which have been decreasing compared

to previous years, we have justified the
confidence placed in us by the government.
Nowadays, the Company is proud to have the
biggest flotilla in the Caspian Sea, with 264
vessels.

As the biggest flotilla in the Caspian Sea
region, the Company is constantly renewing
its fleet, raising its technical capabilities and
strengthening its talent pool to overcome
new challenges and improve its competitive
edge as it expands beyond the Caspian
basin. Within the next 10 years, our ambition
is to establish a modern, world-class
shipping company by rejuvenating our fleet,
diversifying and expanding our international
operations. As a part of our growth strategy,
14 vessels have been commissioned in the
Black Sea and Mediterranean regions. We are
planning to invest more than USD 1 billion in
expanding our fleet within the next ten years.
We are planning to finance this project mostly
with our own resources.

We continuously focus on maintaining
our fleet in accordance with internationally
accepted standards by effective management
and significant financial investments.
Substantial reforms and structural
changes have been achieved since the
re-establishment of the Company. The
Company introduced SAP system modules
in accordance with international standards
for the reporting of financial statements,
and established a Central Dispatch System,
Electronic Supply System, and a unified
corporate computer network. At the same
time, the Company has carried out measures
to optimize the communication of ships with
coastal units. Electronic maps have been
installed on ships. Moreover, based on the
audit conducted by the Nautical Institute
on July 6-7, 2017, a certificate was issued
for the dynamic positioning (DP) simulator,
which is a computer-controlled system for
maintaining the position and course of ships,
which belongs to the Training Center of the
Azerbaijan State Maritime Academy of ASCO.

This certificate allows the center to conduct
DP Induction and DP Simulator training.

Additionally, since the Company’s re-
establishment our financial statements
are issued and externally audited by
international audit firm EY. In light of our
acknowledgement that the achievement of
not only economic but also safety, social
and environmental objectives are the main
criteria critical for the Company’s success, we
issue a biannual Sustainable Development
Report. Our Company is one of the sustainable
development pioneers in the country,
demonstrating support for the government’s
policy and strategy to implement the global
sustainability agenda. Reliable financial and
sustainability reports will further contribute
to ensuring transparency in the Company'’s
operations.

Detailed information about our operations
is given in the Our fleet and main business
activities section of this report.
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OUR COMPETITIVE
ADVANTAGE
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The Caspian region has
been an important global
energy basin since the early
19th century and benefits from
comparatively low extraction
costs, significant reserves and
growing production levels.

We have an experience of 160
years in the shipping industry.
During this period, we have
continuously developed in every
aspect of the business. Our

main assets are our teams dedicated
to their work and highly qualified
sailors. Our fleet consisting of various
type modern vessels meeting the
requirements of customers is the
most diversified and rich fleet in the
Caspian Sea. With the government
support added to the mentioned
points, ASCO is currently one of

the leading shipping companies.
Mentioned points are the foundation
of our competitive advantage.
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OUTLOOK ON BUSINESS RISKS

We have laid out here the main
risks that are significant for our
operations. Acknowledging these
risks, we closely track all the trends,
risks and uncertainties to be able
to assess them in a timely fashion
and to prevent or mitigate them in
a proactive manner. The level of
our exposure to risks is effectively
controlled by our risk management
system. We also assess some risks
not only just as threats but also as
our drivers for change and areas for
improvement. We have attracted
tangible investment to turn those
risks into opportunities.

Reputation risk

Due to reasons such as an inability
to build professional relationships,
to provide lower service levels, not
to meet contractual obligations
and others, our Company may lose
value in front of stakeholders. In
order to avoid this risk, we must
provide customers with a high level
of service, as well as ensure that
transportation is safe and secure,
without causing any damage to the
environment and cargo, and without
our passengers’ dissatisfaction.
Moreover, it is important to review a
potential partner’s business history
before engaging in a relationship,
maintaining long-term cooperation
principles and business ethics.

Competition risk

We can lose market share and
profits as a result of our failure to
exploit our competitive advantage,
weak research, the non-renewal of
fleet and lack of competitiveness.
For this reason, ASCO carries out a
regular review of both the Caspian
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and beyond Caspian markets, studying customers’ needs and competitors in
the markets, investigating the strengths and weaknesses of our Company, and
identifying and maintaining our competitive advantage.

Political and economic risks

Any failure to carry out transportation or provide offshore support services
due to the political and economic situation in our region of activity, may
jeopardize business continuity. To be prepared, it is important to monitor the
political and economic dynamics in the region of activity and increase our
independence from these political and economic influences.

Failure to prepare strong local personnel

The main source of the success of our shipping business is the
professionalism of the Azerbaijani sailors. Inadequate staffing, lack of training
and an inability to retain talent may result in an additional financial burden,
the need for external professionals, and shortcomings in common business
processes. For this reason, the promotion of the sailor profession in the
country is one of our main goals. Determining training needs and courses
for each area of our business, training our students in international waters
and on our Company’s ships sailing abroad, strengthening the education
infrastructure of our academy, and improving the wellbeing of our staff are the
most important steps we have undertaken to prevent this risk.




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION ON THE ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

Loss of customers due to outdated ships

The high service age of ships and equipment and the
possibility that they don’t meet the modern requirements
can lead to loss of customers. In order to avoid this, old
ships must be operated in accordance with their technical
condition, the marine quality of the vessels should be kept
under constant watch and the ships should be repaired in
accordance with the repair plan, and the modernization of
ships should be carried out on time, taking into account
the technical and construction indicators.

The risk to life and health of employees

Damage to life and health as a result of a breach of
safety rules and reduced control may result in the delay
in the implementation of common business processes and
harm the reputation of the Company. At ASCO, we monitor
the use of personal protective equipment and its regular
use. Relevant measures are taken to ensure that the
working conditions of employees meet the requirements
of existing standards, and staff are provided with timely
instructions and training. It is crucial to comply with the
rules of safe conduct during the use and transportation
of toxic chemical substances in the workplace. Moreover,
staff participation in first medical aid courses is ensured.

Damage that may arise from the extension of repair
periods

Due to mistakes in the repair process, any prolongation
of repair periods may result in the loss of profits and a
delay in overall business processes. In order to avoid this
risk, we pay special attention to the timely preparation
of repair estimate documentation and the elimination
of delays in purchasing spare parts and materials. Other
important factors include the maintenance of equipment
and lifting equipment installed on lateral bridges for
repair, and the knowledge and skills of the repair workers.

Damage to the environment

Violation of maritime industry safety rules may
result in pollution of the sea or groundwater with oil
or petroleum products, household waste or chemical
products. In order to avoid this risk, we attach special

importance to the cleaning of oil-fuel tanks of vessels
under repair, to the preparation of emergency action
plans, to enhancing the skills and habits of employees
through training, and to complying with production
process rules when collecting, transporting and handling
household wastewater.

The technical specifications of our vessels sailing in
international waters are consistent with those required by
IMO. We have to timely incur certain maintenance costs to
keep standards high. Sulphur emission limit tightened by
IMO is not yet applied in the Caspian Sea. If this regulatory

requirement is adopted in the Caspian Sea in the future,
that could lead to the use of more expensive and low-
sulphur blends and the need for capital to make necessary
modifications to vessels. In the long-run, however, we
embrace these risks as an opportunity for us to shift to a
more energy-efficient technology and further modernize
our fleet.
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FIVE YEARS REPORT

OUR BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY

Our business comprises of specialized offshore
support services, transportation services (ferry, liquid
and dry cargo) and other services. As we mostly earn
revenues from offshore and transportation services, our
discussions are mainly focused on these services. The
breakdown of our revenues from services provided for the
5 years starting the establishment of our Company is given
below.

Revenue breakdown by services provided during the
period of 2014-2018 (%)

14% 5%
10% L .
‘ . Specialized offshore services
13%
) @ rerry transportation
2 0 1 8 Liquid cargo transportation
@ Dry cargo transportation
@ other
57%
Oil fleet

Global energy demand is the fundamental driver of all
oil and gas related activities. While crude oil remains the
key energy source in the market, natural gas is gaining
importance globally as the demand for a relatively
clean fuel source becomes more important. According
to ExxonMobil’s 2018 Outlook for Energy, natural gas will
grow at the fastest rate of all energy sources, reaching a
quarter of all demand by 2040. Oil will continue to play a
key role in the world’s energy mix, with growing demand
driven by commercial transportation needs and feedstock
requirements for the chemicals industry.
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Trends in exploration and production expenditure on
oil and gas fields have a direct impact on our operations.
According to the Westwood Global Energy Group, Eastern
Europe and CIS countries are expected to see growth of
28% in aggregate exploration and production costs of oil
and gas fields (compared with the last five-year period).
The bulk of Azerbaijan's gas is sourced from the Shah
Deniz field. Production is expected to increase sharply
after the commencement of the second phase of the Shah
Deniz project in 2019.

Utilization rates of our oil fleet vessels were on a
steadily high level. Utilization rates through last five years
varied between 85% and 88%. The utilization rate is one of
our key performance indicators, illustrating how we have
been taking the fullest advantage of our fleet by efficiently
exploiting the broad vessel spectrum.

Demand for offshore support services in Caspian
region is forecasted to grow. In the long run, according
to Douglas-Westwood, there will be a positive shift
in the offshore vessel market with the demand for all
offshore vessel types increasing globally by 3.7% per year
on average between 2014 and 2025, driven by growing
offshore oil and gas supply in the coming years, notably in
deep offshore fields.

We expect steady future growth in revenue generation
from our offshore support vessels due to the rise in
demand for offshore vessels caused by accelerated
offshore activities, given that the Company is continuously
investing to maintain its competitiveness in this market.
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Transportation fleet

Over the past decade, the shipping industry has seen a
general trend of increase in total trade volume. The United
Nations Conference on Trade and Development (UNCTAD)
forecasts world seaborne trade volumes to grow at an
estimated compound annual growth rate of 3.2 percent
between 2017 and 2022. According to Clarksons Research,
world seaborne tanker trade - crude oil, refined petroleum
products and gas - continued to grow in 2016, with an
increase in oil market supply and low oil prices, and will
continue to grow. The Food and Agriculture Organization
(FAO) predicts that global demand for agricultural
products will continue to rise at a pace of 1.4% a year for
2015 to 2030. In the longer term, the fact that shipping
is the most fuel efficient and carbon friendly type of
commercial transport should lead to a greater proportion
of world trade being carried by sea, according to the
International Chamber of Shipping.

Within our transportation service line, we offer liquid
cargo (tanker), dry cargo and ferry transportation services.
Our liquid cargo is mainly crude oil, fuel oil and diesel
fuel, as well as other petroleum products. Our liquid cargo
transportation revenue experienced an increase of 23%
in 2018 in comparison to the previous year. Generally, we

expect positive trends in the energy sector to continue,

with a notable increase in oil consumption. Demand for

consumer-led oil products should boost our liquid cargo
transportation service line.

Dry cargo transportation includes the transportation
of a variety of agricultural commodities, construction
materials and metals. Revenues generated from this
service have been growing over recent years. There was
a 16% increase in dry cargo transportation revenue in
2018 in comparison to the previous year. Most of our dry
cargo transportation revenue come from agricultural
commodities shipping, mainly wheat and corn. Our
continual revenue growth generated from dry cargo
transportation is explained not only by the rise in vessel
numbers, but also by our operational efficiency and the
quality of our services. As the world’s population is rising
and the demand for agricultural products is predicted to
grow, we expect to increase our revenues from dry cargo
transportation, given that ASCO will further modernize its
fleet in terms of quality, number and type of vessels to
efficiently meet our clients’ demands.
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FIVE YEARS REPORT

DISCUSSIONS ON
FINANCIAL POSITION

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in accordance with IFRS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. A summary of the Company'’s significant
accounting policies, estimates and assumptions, including
accounting pronouncements that will be adopted in
future periods, can be found in notes 2 to 5 of the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31,2018, which are an integral part of this
report.

Non-current assets of the Company mainly consist
of vessels, plant and equipment. Current assets mainly
contain such accounts as inventories and trade and other
receivables. Non-current liabilities mainly consist of long-
term loans. Current liabilities are mainly trade and other
payables and the current portion of long-term loans.

2018 2017 2016
Specialized
offshore fleet 249,290,442 284,878,007 285,428,957
Ferry
transportation 68,761,101 84,496,596 71,773,956
Liquid cargo
transportation 60,692,007 56,502,497 64,867,942
Dry cargo
transportation 39,348,277 38,938,797 23,454,173
Other 34,079,173 9,489,103 9,399,972
Total revenue,
AZN 452,171,000 474,305,000 454,925,000

As can be seen from the table above, we earn most of
our revenues from offshore services, ferry transportation,
liquid and dry cargo transportations.
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Financial risks - we are exposed to financial risks,
including liquidity risk, credit risk, currency risk, market
risk, interest rate risk and price risk. That is why we
constantly monitor fluctuations and take necessary
actions to mitigate risks. We are careful when dealing with
foreign currency transactions and we give preference to
providing pre-paid services.

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Gross margin 35% 44% 1% 32% 8%

We have a consistent increase in the gross margin with
a slight decrease in 2018, which proves that investments
made by the government have been successfully utilized
in terms of improving the overall profitability of our
Company and contributing to the prosperity of the local
economy.

The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is
to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under
both normal and stressed capital conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company’s reputation.

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Current ratio 2.25 3.52 3.91 2.59 1.10
Acid test 1.64 2.52 2.84 1.74 0.71
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According to the liquidity analysis, the Company has
high ratios, demonstrating its ability to cover its short-
term debt with assets that can be easily converted into '
cash and cash equivalents. |

For more information on ASCO’s financial results,
please refer to the audited financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2018, which are an integral part
of this report. This and audited financial statements for
the years ended 31 December 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 can
be easily found on our Company'’s official website.
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Independent auditor's report

To Management of “Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” CJSC
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping CJSC and
its subsidiaries (the "Group™), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprahensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a sum mary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018 and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accardance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs).

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities
for the sudit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibliities of management and those charged with governance for the consolidated
financlal statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management detarmines js
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISA will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consoclidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpese of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
reguired to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our
opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficlencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Ganat & Ypung. Hlaldings (C15) B

30 March 2019

Baku, Azerbaijan



“Azarbaijan Caspian Shipping” CJSC Caonsolidated financial statements
Consolidated statement of financial position

As at 31 December 2018

fAmounts preserded are m thousands of Azechajand Manals unless othensize shated)

31 December 31 Decembar

Motes 2018 2017
Aszets
MHon-current assets
Vessels, property, plant and equipment 13 TE6,508 659,846
Intangible assets 4087 2438
Long-term prepayments a 120,295 94,050
Deferred tax assets 20 E 1,106
Total non-current assets 830,890 TE7,440
Current assets
Inventories 10 B2.614 74 945
Trade and ociher recaivables 7 178,800 155,923
Taxes receivable 8 22035 15,299
Shor-term prepayments g 11,406 B.443
Cash and cash equivalents & 9,005 7.03z2
Restrictad cash ] anz __B5
Total current assets 305,152 262,711
Total assets 1,156,042 1.030,151
Equity
Share capital 15 440,051 440 051
Additional paid-in capital 15 36,000 16,000
Retained earnings 514,837 467 489
Total equity B8O, 588 823,540
Liabilities
Mon-current liabilities
Long-term loans 12 50,781 25,408
Non-current provisions 14 4 555 2608
Deferred tax kabilities 20 14,148 3,084
Total non-current liabilities 69,484 32,001
Current liabilities
Short-term loans 12 8,000 -
Current portion of long-term loans 12 16,322 4,864
Contract liabilities 17,035 =
Trade and other payables 1 " 50,494
Current pravisions 14 8B3a0 7968
Taxes payable 19 4 485 1,284
Total current liabilities 135,570 74,610
Total liabilities 205,054 106,611
Total equity and liabilities 1,196,042 1,030,151

Signed and authorized for release on behalf of the Group on 30 March 2019,

o T Mr. Jalal Faraji
o | Deputy Chairman on Economic |ssues

Mr. Rauf VYaliyey
Chalrrman

The accompanying notes form aﬁfgﬂgfetnmfﬂwgﬂnmrﬂaw financial staterments.
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“Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” CJSC Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2013

(Amounts presented are in thousands of Azerbaijan) Manats uniess othenwise stated)

MNotes 2018 2017
Revenue 16 452,171 474,305
Costof sales 17 (294,242) (265,101)
Gross profit 157,529 209,204
Geaneral and administrative expaenses 17 52,481 (52,120)
Social expensas 17 (12,132} 5,103)
Qther operating income 21 33,253 44 390
Other operaling expenses 17 48114, (52,105)
Loss on disposal of vessels, property, plant and equipmeant 13 (200} (B37)
Foreign exchange loss (E92) 13,888)
Operating profit 77,583 139,541
Finance casts 22 (1,814) 1,410)
Profit before income tax 75,669 138,131
Income tax expense 20 123,207) (35.000)
Profit for the year 52,462 100,131
Qiher comprehensive incomea for the yaar - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 52,462 100,131

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consofidated financial statements.
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“Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” CJSC Consolidated financial statements

Consclidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2018

(Amaunts presenfed are in thousands aof Azerbayani Manats unless otherwize staled)

Additional
Share paid-in Retained
capital capital £amings Total
Balance at 1 January 2017 440,051 - 367,358 807,409
Total comprehensive income for the vear - - 101,131 100,131
Increase in additienal paid-in capital
{Note 15) - 16,0410 - 16,000
Balance at 31 December 2017 440,051 16,000 467,489 923,540
Impact of adopling IFRS 9 (Note 4) - - (5,014) (5,014)
Balance at 1 January 2018 440,051 16,000 462,475 918,526
Total comprehensive income for the vear - - 52,462 52,462
Increase in additienal paid-in capital
{Note 15) - 20,010 - 20,000
Balance at 31 December 2018 440,051 36,000 514,937 990,938

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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“Azerhaijan Caspian Shipping” CJSC Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 20138

rAmounts presented are in thousands of Azerbayan Manats unfess otherwise stated)

Notes 2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax 75,669 138,131
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of vessels, preperty, plant and eguipment 13,17 60,733 4,217
Amaertisation of intangible assels 17 442 275
Impairment of trade and ¢ther receivables 17 1,099 5,185
Met foreign exchange differences (995) (1.082)
Less on disposal of vessels, preperty, plant and equipment 13 200 837
Finance casts 22 1,914 1.410
Gain on release of pravision and

recavery of receivables written-off 21 (925} i9.675)
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 138,137 209,298
Increase in trade and other receivables 7 (29,319) (16,055)
Increase in inventories 10 (7 ,B65) (10,979)
Increase in prepaymeants 9 (1,963) (3,322)
(Increase)decreasa in faxes receivable 3 (6,736} 7
Increase in restricted cash B (237) (37)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 11 13,130 (17E)
Increase in contract liabilities 17,035 —
Increase/(decrease) in provision 14 3,608 (3BE)
Increase in laxes payable 19 2,338 601
Cash generated from operations 128,328 178,970
Income taxes paid 18, 20 (9,839) (21.564)
Interest paid (1,814) (1,410
Net cash flows from operating activities 116,575 155,996
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of vessels, property, plant and equipment 13 1178,346) [165,007)
Purchase of intangible assets (2,091) (919)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (180,437) {166,016)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term loans 12 41,065 -
Proceeds from short-term loans 12 12,000 7.600
Repayment of long-term loans 12 (4,235) 4.235)
Repayment of short-term lcans 12 (3,000} (7.600)
Increase in additional paid-in capital 15 20,000 16,000
Net cash flows from financing activities 65,830 11,765
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,968 1,745
MNet foreign exchange difference 995 1.082
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5] 7,032 4205
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9,995 7,032

The accompanying noles fonm an integral part of these consoldated fnanciaf sfatemeants.




Notes to the consolidated financial statements
‘Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” CJSC for the year ended 31 December 2018

(Amounts presented are in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats untess otherwise stated)

1. The Group and its operations

“Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” Closed Jaint Stock Company (the “Company”} was eslablished by merging
the Azerbaijan State Caspian Sea Shipping Company ("ASCS3C") and the Caspian Sea Oil Fleet (*CSOF") of
the State Qil Company of Azerbaijan Republic {*SOCAR"), in accordance with the Decree No. & of the
Prasident of Azerbaijan Republic, dated 22 October 2013 on Esfablishment of “Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping”
Closed Joint-Stock Caompany and Dacree Mo, 213, dated 10 January 2014, on Ormganization of Activity of
“Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” Closed Joinf-Stock Company. Two companies were merged in order to
continug fundamental structural reforms in the economy, increase domestic and international transportation in
maritime industry, enhance competitiveness and transit potential of Azerbaijan and get synergies from
centralized management of the state owned shipping companies,

The Company and its subsidiaries are together referred to as “the Group” in these consolidated financial
statements. The Group comprises the offshore support and merchant fleets, tao shipyards, production support
and social development business entities and entities providing logistics services, mantime  education,
implementation of repair, construction, installation and design works with near to 8,800 of full-time employees.

The ultimate controlling party of the Group as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 is the Government of
the Republic of Azerbaijan (the “Govermnment”).

The registered address of the Group is M.A. Rasulzade str., 5 Baku, Azerbaijan.
2, Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidianes collectively referred as the "Group™)
have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (JASB). The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the periods presented. All amounts in these consolidated financial statements are
presented in thousands Azerbaijani Manat ("AZN"), unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a histoncal cost basis, excepl for investment
properties, certain office properties (classified as properly, plant and equipment), denvative financial
instruments, available-for-sale financial assets, contingent consideration and non-cash distribution lability that
have been measured at fair value. The consclidated financial statements provide comparative information in
respect of the previcus period.

Basis for consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2018.

Subsidianes are all entities over which the Group has control, being the power to govern the financial and
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities, generally accompanying a shareholding of more
than one half of the voting rights. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

- Power over the imvestee (1.e., existing nghts that give it the current abibity to direct the relevant achvities
at the inveslea),

[ Exposure, or nights, 1o vanable returns from its involvement with the investeg;

- The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns,

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more ¢of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assats,
liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the vear are included in the
consclidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceasas to
control the subsidiary .
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements
“Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” CJSC for the year ended 31 December 2018

fAmounts presented are In thousands of Azerbaljani Manats uniess otherwise stafed)

2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting pelicies (continued)
Basis for consolidation (continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made (o the finandal slatements of subsidiaries 1o bring their accouniing
policies info line with the Group’s accounting policies, All infra-group assetls and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating 1o fransaclions between mambers of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group leses contrel over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related asseis (including goodwill), liahilities,
non-cantralling interest and ¢ther components of equity, while any resultant gain or lass is recognised in profit
or loss. Any invastment retained is recognisad at fair value.

Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consclidated statement of financial position based on current/
non-current classification. An asset as current when it is:

s Expected 10 be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
S Expected 10 be realised within twealve months after the reperting period; or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setlle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-cumrent.

A liability 15 current when:

. It is expected 10 be settled in normal cperating cycle;

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

» Itis due 10 be sellled within twelve months aller the reporting penad; or

s There 15 no unconditional nght to defer the setilerment of the liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting penod.
The Group classifies all olher habilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition 15 measured
as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisifion date fair value and the amount of any
non-controlling interest inthe acquiree. For each business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling
mnlerest in the acquiree either at 1air valué or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's wWentihable net assels.
Acquisition costs incurred are expensed and included in admimistrabive expenses. When the Group acquires a
business, it assesses the inanaal assets and habilities assumed lor appropnale classihcation and designation
i accordance with the contractual terms, cconomic crcumstances and perinent conditions as al the
acquisition date. This indudes the separation of embedded denvatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through profit or loss.

Busmess combmations with entities under common confro!

The Group apphes acquisiion method of accounting for business combinations wath entities under the commaon
contral.
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(Amounts presented are in thousands of Azerbaljani Manats unfess otherwise stated)

2, Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies {continued)
Foreign currency translation

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is Azerbaijan Manat as the majority of the Group's
revenueas, cosls, inventory purchased, and frade liabilities are either pricad, incurred, payable or otharwise
measured in Azerbaijani Manat.

The operations in the Group entities of which currency differ from the funclional currency of the Group and not
already measured in the Group’s functional currency are translated by following the below steps:

(8 Monetary assels and liabilities not already measured in the functional currency of respective Group
entity are translated into the functional currency al the closing rate at the date of thal statement of
financial position,

8 Income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive incomea are
translated al average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
curmulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expensas
are translated at the dates of the transactions),

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the re-measurement into the funclional currencies of
respective Group's enfities are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss or other
comprehensive income.

At 31 December 2018 the principal rate of exchange used for translating foreign currency balances was
USh 1 =AZN 1.7000, EUR 1= AZN 1.9468, RUB 1 = AZN 0.0245 TRY 1 = AZN 0.3212 (31 December 2017:
USC 1= AZN 1.7001, EUR 1 = AZN 20307, RUB 1 = AZN 0.0295, TRY 1 = AZN 0.4459),

Financial instruments - key measurement terms

Depending on their classification financial instruments are carried at fair value, or amortized cost as described
below.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between markel participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the assel or transfer the liabilily takes place either:

8 In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
8 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantagaous market for the assel or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asseat

or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
aeconomic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
is available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservabla inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measurad or disclosed in the financal statemeants are categonsed
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowesl level inpul that i3 significant o the
fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 - quoted (unadjustaed) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measuremeant is directly or indirectly observable.

, Level 3 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to lhe fair value
measuremeant is unohservable.
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(Amounts presented are in thousands of Azerbajan Manats unless otherwise slated)

2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies {continued)
Financial instruments — key measurement terms (continued)

For assels and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Costis the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other consideration given 1o acquire
an assel at the fime of its acquisition and includes transaction costs. Measurement at cost is only applicable
to investments in equity instrumentis that do not have a quoted market price and whose fair value cannact be
reliably measured.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attribuiable o the acquisition, issue or disposal of a
financial instrument. An incremenial cost is one that would not have been incurred if the transaction had not
taken place. Transaclion costs indude fees and commissions paid to agents (including employees acling as
selling agents), advisors, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and securifies exchanges, and
transfer taxes and duties. Transaclion cosis do not include debt premiums or discounts, financing costs or
internal administrative or holding cosls.

Amorlised cost is the amount at which the financial instrument was recognised at inihial recognition less any
principal repayments, plus accrued interest, and for financial assels less any allowance for expected credit
losses ("ECL"™). Accrued interest includes amorisation of transaction cosls deferred at initial recognition and
of any premium or discount to the maturity amount using the effective interest method. Accrued interest income
and accrued interest expense, including both accrued coupen and amortised discount ar premium (including
feaes deferred at origination, if any), are not presented separately and are included in the carrying values of the
related items in the consolidated statement of financial position,

The effective interest method is a method of allecating interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period, s0 as lo achieve a constant periodic rate of interest (effective interest rate) on the carrying amount.
The effeclive interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated fulure cash payments or receipis
(excluding future credit losses) through the expedcied life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, if
appropriale, to the gross carrying amount of the financial instrument. The effective interest rate discounts cash
flows of variable interest instruments to the next interest repricing date, except for the premium or discount
which reflects the credit spread over the floating rate specified in the instrument, or other variables that are not
reset to market rates. Such premiums or discounts are amortised over the whole expected life of the
instrument. The present value calculation includeas all fees paid or received betweaen parlies o the contract
that are an integral parl of the effective interest rale. For assets that are purchased or originated credit impaired
("PCCI") at initial recognition, the effective interest rate is adjusied for credit risk, i.e. it is calculated based on
the expected cash flows on initial recognition instead of contractual payments.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assels are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (CCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assats at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient, the Group iniially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, fransaction costs. Trade receivables that do nol contain a significant
financaing companent or for which the Group has applied the praclical expedient are measured al
the transaction price determined under IFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset 1o be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs
1o give rise 1o cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPIY on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred 1o as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.
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2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies {continued)

Financial assets (continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assels refers 10 how it manages its financial assets in
order to generale cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will resull from collecting
contraciual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both,

Purchases or sales of financial assels that require delivery of assels within a time frame established by
requlation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subseqguent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurament, financial assets are classified in four categorias:

> Financial assets at amartised cost {debt instruments),

> Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debl
instrumentis),

S Financial assets designated at fair value through ©CI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses

upon derecognifion (equilty instruments);

. Financial assets at fair valua through prefit or loss.

Financial assels af amortised cast {(debt instruments)
This category is the most relevant to the Group. The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both
of the following conditicns are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contraciual cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financal assets at amorbsed cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and
are subject 1o impaiment. Gains and losses are recogmsed in proht or loss when the assel is derecognisaed,
modified orimpaired.

The Group's hinancial assets at amorbsed cost includes rade receivables.

The Group measures debl instruments at tar value through OCIH I both of the lollowing condibions are met.

- The hnanoal assetl s held within a business model with the objective of bolh holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of prncipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluaticn and impairment
losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in QCI. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in OCI is recycled 1o profit or loss.

The Group has no debt instruments at fair value through OCI.
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2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting pelicies (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets designated at fair value through QC! (equity instruments)

Upon initial recagnition, the Group ¢an elect Lo classify irevocably its equity investments as equity instruments
designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equily under IAS 32 Financial
Instruments; Presentation and are not held for frading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except when
the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case,
such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through QCI are not subject

1o impairment assessment.

Financial assets af falr value through profif or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit ar loss, or financial assets mandatorily required
1o be measured at fair value. Finandcial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded dernvatives,
are also dassified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instrumenis. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI, as descrbed above, debt
mstruments may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on inthial recogrifion if doing so eliminates,
ar significantly reduces, an accounting rmismatch.

Finanaial assets at fair value through profit or loss are camed in the statement of finanaal posifion at fair value
with net changes in fair value recogmised in the statement of profit or loss.

A denvative embedded in a hybnd contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, 1s separated from the
host and accounted for as a separate denvative i the economic charactenstics and nsks are not closely
related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded denvative would meet the
definiion of a denvative; and the hybnd contract 15 not measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded
denvatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment
anly accurs it there 1s either a change in the terms of the contract that sigrihcantly modihes the cash tlows that
would atherwise be required ar a reclassihcation of a tinancial asset oul of the far value through protilt or loss
calegory.

A derivabive embedded within a hybnd contract containing a hinancial assel host s nol accounted for
separately. The linancial asset host together with the embedded denvative 15 required to be classiied inits
antirely as a hinancial asset al 1air value through prohit or lass.

Derecognition

Addinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar inanaal assels)
15 primanly derecognised (i.e., removed trom the Group's consolidaled stalement of tinanaal position) whern:
> The rights to receive cash llows Trom the assel have expired; or

- The Group has transferred its nghis 1o receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an cbligation
to pay the received cash flows mn full without matenal delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has fransferred substantially all the nsks and rewards of the
assel, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the nsks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.  Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred ils rights 1o receive cash flows from an assel or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the nsks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues 1o recognise the transferred asset 1o the extent of its continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured al the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required 1o repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not hald at fair
value through profit or less. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows dug in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects 1o receive, discountad at an
approximation of the original effective interest rale.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase
in credit sk since initial recegnition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposuras forwhich there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is requirad for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, imespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL)

For frade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a smplified approach in caloculating ECLs.

Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit nsk, but instead recogmises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matnx that s based onits historical
credit loss expenence, adjusted for forward-looking factors speciic to the debtors and the economic
environment

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, the Group applies the low credit nsk simplification. At every
reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the debit instrurment is considered to have low credit nsk using all
reasonable and supportable information that 15 available without undue cost or effort. Inmaking that evaluation,
the Group reassaesses the intermnal credit rabing of the debt instrument. In addibon, the Group considers that
there bhas been a significant mereéase in credit nsk when contractual payments are mora than 30 days past
due,

The Group considers a tinancial asset 10 be in default when intemal or extemal infonmation indicates thal the
Group i1s unlikely 10 receve he outstanding contractual amounts in ull bafore taking inle account any credil
anhancements held by the Group. A hinancial asset s wntten oft when tharg 15 no reasonable expecltabion of
recovenng the contractual cash tows.,
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2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies {continued)
Financial liabilities
initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivalives designaled as hedging instrumenis in an effeclive hedge,
as appropriate,

All financial liabilities are reccegnised initially at fair value and, in the case of leans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly aiributable fransaction cests. The Group's financial liabilities include trade and othar
payables, shori-term and long-term loans

Subseqguent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial hatihies at fairr value through profit ar loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liahilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 9 Separatad ambedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless thay ara dasignated as effactive hedging instrumeants.,

Gains or losseas on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfiad. The Group has not designated any
financial liability as at fair value through prefit or loss

Loans and harrowings

This is the categery most relevant ta the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and barrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recegnised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amorisation process. Amorhised cost
is calculaled by taking inte account any discount or premium on acgquisition and fees or cosis that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisaticn is included as financa cosis in the statemant of profit or loss.
This catagory generally applies to interast-bearing loans and borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the ebligafion under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expiras.
When an exisiing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substanfially modified, such an exchange or modification is freated as
the deracognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respeciive
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offsat and the net amount is reportad in the consolidatad sfatemeant

of financial position if thara is a currantly enforceable lagal right to offset the recognised amounts and thera is
an intenticn to setile on a net basis, to realise the assetis and settle the liabilities simultanaously.
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2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)
Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amaortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A receivable represents the Group’s right to
an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Restricted cash

Restricted cash is presented separately from cash and cash equivalents. Restrcted balances represent
amount available on VAT deposit account and are excluded from cash and cash equivalenis for the purposes
of cansolidated cash flow statement.

Trade payables

Trade pavables are accrued when the counterparty performed ils cbligations under the contract. Trade
payables are recognised initially at fair and subsequenily measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method.

Loans

All loans are inifially recognised at fair value of the proceeds received net of 1ssue costs associated with the
loan. Loans are carned at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Interest costs on loans o finance the construction of vessels, property, plant and equipment are capitalised,
dunng the penod of ime that is required o complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. All cther
borrowing costs are expensad

Vessels, property, plant and equipment

Construction in progress, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accurmulated impanment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment
and barrowing costs 1or long-lerm construction projects it the recogribon enténa are mel. When significant
parts of plant and equipment are required 1o be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately
based on their specihc usetul ives. Likewise, when a major inspection 1s pertarmed, ifs cost s recogised in
the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if ihe recognibion cntena are satished. All
ather repair and mamlenansce cosls are recogmised in protit ar loss as ncuwrad.

Sigmhcant renovation and overhaul expenses over vessels ansing at a later date are included in each assel’s
book value. They can be recognised as a separate asset only f i is ikely that the tulure cconomic benehis
associaled with the item will be benclicial 1o the Group and if the acguisition cost of the asset can be rehiably
determined. Crdinary repair and mamienancé expenses aré reocogmisad as éxpenses tor the reporting penocd
dunng winch they were incurred.

Vessels are depreciated over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives and the residual values
of assets are revised at each end of the reporling penod and, when necessary, adjusted to reflect changes
that have taken place in the expected future economic benefits.

Acrevaluation surplus is recorded in other comprehensive income and credited 10 the asset revaluation surplus
in equity. However, to the extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit of the same asset previously recognised
in profit or loss, the increase is recognised in profit or loss. A revaluation deficit is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss, except to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognised in the
asset revalualion reserve.

WWw.acso.az




Motes to the consolidated financial statements
“Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” CJSC for the year ended 31 December 2018

{Amounts presented are in thousands of Azerbajjani Manats unless otherwise stated)

2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)

Vessels, property, plant and equipment {(continued)

An annual fransfer from the asset revaluation reserve to retained 2amings i1s made far the difference between
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the assel and depreciation based on the asset's original
cost. Additicnally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated 1o the revalued amount of the assel. Upon disposal, any
revaluation reserve relating 1o the particular asset being sold is transferred o retained eamings.
Depreciation

Vessels, property, plant and equipment related to shipping industry are depreciated using a straight line
depreciation methed. Land is not depreciated. Assels under construction are not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of the Group's vessels, properly, plant and equipment are as follows:

Buildings and canstructions 15 10 30 years
Machinery and equipment 310 25 years
Vessels and port facilities 310 30 years

The expected useful lives of vessels, property, plant and equipment are reviewed on an annual basis and, if
necessary, changes in useful lives are accounted for prospectively,

The residual value of an asset is the estimated amount that the Group would currently obtain from disposal of
the assetless the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already of the age and in the condition expected
at the end of its useful life. The residual value of an asset is nil if the Group expects to use the asset until the
end of its physical life unless scrap value 1s significant. The assets residual values are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Leases

The determination of whether an arangement s (or contains) a lease 15 based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The amangement 15, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement 15 dependent on the use of a speafic asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a night 1o use
the asset or assets, even if that nght is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Group as a lessee

A leasc 1s classiied at the incepbon date as a tinance lease or an oparating leasa. A leasa thal lransters
substantially all the nsks and rewards incidental Lo ownarstup to the Group s classilfisd as a hinance leasa.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception dale fair value of the leased
properly or, it lower, atl the present value of the minimum lease payments. Leass paymenls are apportioned
between linance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the stalement of profit or loss.

Aleased asselis depreciated over the uselul e of the asset. Howevear, it there s no reasonable corlainty that
the Group will oblaim ownershup by the end ol the lease tem, the asset s depreciated over the shorler of the
astimated uscelul bie: of the assel and the lease term,

Operating lease paymenis are recognised as an operating expense in the statement of profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an assat
are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurmed in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the penod in which they are earnad.
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2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair valuge at the date of acquisition. Following iniial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. Intangible assets
include rights and computer software, patents, licences, customer relationships, trade name, water rights and
development projects.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinile. Intangible assets with finite lives
are amorlised on a straight-line basis over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amartisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewsad at least at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattem of consumption of future economic benefits
embadied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the expense category
consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are nat amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable If not, the change in usaful life from indefinite
to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses ansing from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognisad in the statement of profit or
loss when the asset 1s derecognised.

Inventories

Inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realisable value 15 the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs to sell.

Cost 15 assigned by the weighted average method. Cost compnses direct purchase costs of matenals for
vassels repair and mamtenance and cost of produchon (based on normal operating capacity ).

Distribution to the Government

Distnbution to the Government represent cash distnbubions or Hinancing which the Group may b required 1o
make 1o the state budgel, various government agencies and projects administerad by the Govemment based
on the paricular decisions of the Govemmenl. Such dislnbutions are recorded as a raducbhon of equily.
Distnbutions in the torm of transters of non-monetary assels are recogmisad al the carmying value of transtemad
assels.

Contributions by the Government

Contributicns by the Govemment are made in the form of cash contributions, transfer of other state-ownead
entities or transfer of all or part of the Government's share in other entities. Transfer of the state-ownad antities
to the Group is recegnized as cantribution through equity statemeant in the amount being the fair value of the
transferred entity (in case of transfer by the Government of its share in other entities - the transfermad share in
the fair value of the respective entity).
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2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)

Value-added tax

The tax authorities permit the settlement of sales and purchases value-added tax ("VAT") on a net basis.
VAT payable

VAT payable represents VAT related to sales netof VAT on purchases which have been settled at the reporting
date. VAT related 1o sales is payable to tax authorities either upon receipt of payment, if payment is received
prior to or within 30 days from the date of sale, or at recognition of sales to customers, if payment is received
after 20 days from the date of sale. VAT related to sales which have not been sattled al the statement of
financial position date is also incduded in VAT payable. Where provision has bean made for impairment of
receivables, impairment loss is recorded for the gross amount of the debtor, including VAT where applicable.
The related VAT deferred liability is maintained until the deblor is written off for lax purposes.

VAT recoverable

VAT recoverable relates to purchases which have not been settled at the reporting date. VAT recoverable is
reclaimable against VAT on sales upon payment for the purchases.

Revenue recognition

The Group's revenue 15 mainly generated through sales of offshore services (mainly, lime-charters) and
transportation of cargo and passengers (mainly, vaoyage charters). Revenue is recagnised when control of the
saervices or goads are transferred to the custamer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expecis to be entitled in exchange for those servicas or goods. The Group has generally concluded thatl
it 15 the principal in its revenue arangements, because it lypically controls the goods or services before
transferring them 1o the customer.

Revenue from voyvage charlers

Revenues from vayage charters are earned for the carriage of cargo on behalf of the charlerer, in the spot
markel and on contracts aof affreightment, from ane or mare locations of cargo loading to one or more [ocalions
of cargo discharge in return for payment of an agreed upon freight rate per ton of cargo. Freight contracts
confain conditions regarding the amount of fime available for loading and discharging of the vessel. If these
conditions are breached the Group is compensated for the additional time incurred in the form of demurrage
revenue. Demurrage is a variable consideration which is recognised, from the time it bacomes probable, over
the remaining time of the voyage. In applyving its revenue recognition method, managemeant believes thal
salisfaction of a performance abligation for a voyage charler begins when the vessel amves at the loading porl
and ends at the ime the discharge of cargo is completed at the discharge port {load to discharge, which is
when the contract with the customer expires). The Group uses the output method for measuring the progress
towards satisfaction af a performance cobligation, i.e. voyage revenue is recognised pro-rata based on time
elapsed from loading 1o the expecied date of complation of the discharge.

Revenue from hme charlers

Revenues from time charlers are earned for use of the services of the vessal and the crew by the charlerer for
an agreed period of time. The ime-charter contracts continues to be accounted for as a service contract. The
performance obligation is satisfied over time, given that the charlerers simultaneously receive and consume
the benefits provided by the Group.

Other revenues

Cther revenues from non-core operating activities usually contain one distingt performance obligation, which
15 satisfied over time as the customer simulfanecusly receives and consumeas the benefit from the Group's
performance, using the oulput method, Whereas, there are also other revenues from contracts relataed to sales
of goods and services of the Group not directly related to core business, which are salisfied at the point of
time.

WWW.acso0.az




Notes to the consolidated financial statements
“Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” CJSC for the year ended 31 December 2013

(Amounts presented are in thousands of Azerbajjanf Manats unfess othenyise stated)

2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (continued)
Contract assets

A cantract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferrad to the customer,
If the Group performs, by transferring goods or services to a customer, before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earnad consideration that is conditional,

Contract liabilities

A cantract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
hefare the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract hability is recognised when the
payment is made or the payment is due (whichaver is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognisad as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract.

Borrowing costs

Barrowing caosts direcily attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takaes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of
the respective assat. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Bomowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Related parties
Related parties are disclosed in accardance with 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures.

Governmeantal economic and social [JDliC:iU"S altect the Gmup's financial DD‘SI[iDH, results of DDGI'EiiDI'I‘S and cash
Hows.

Related parties may enfer mito ransacbions which unrelaled parties might nol, and transactions betwean
related partios may not be effected on the same tenns, condibions and amounts as lransaclions bebwaen
unrelated parties. ILis the nalure of transacbons with related parties that thay cannot be presumead o be camead
out on an ams-length basis.

Corporate income laxes

Corporate incomé laxes have been provided for in the consolidatad hinancial slatements in accordanca with
the applicable legislation enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. The income tax charge
comprises current tax and deferred tax and is recognisad on the profit or loss unless it relates to transactions
that are recognised, in the same or a different period, in other comprehansive income or directly in equity.
Current tax is the amaount expected to be paid to or recoverad from the taxation authonties in respect of taxable
profits or lasses for the current and prior penods. Taxes, other than income, are recorded within operating
BXPanses.

Employee benefits

Wages, salanes, contributions 1o the Social Protection Fund of the Republic of Azerbaijan, paid annual leave
and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits (e g. health services and kindergarten saivices) ars
accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by the employees of the Group.

Expenses

Expenses are presenied by function in consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Categorization of
the nature of expenses is based on cperational functions of the Group's entities and subsidiaries.
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(Amounts presented are in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats untess otherwise stated)

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, management is required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assats and liabilities that are
net readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered 1 be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future perods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matnx to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns
(i.e., by geography, product type, custemer fype and rating, and coverage by letters of cradit and other forms
of credit insurance)

The provision matrix is inifially based on the Group’s historical observed defaull rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to deterorate over the next year
which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the seclor, the historical default rales are adjusted.
Al every reporting date, the histoncal observed default rates are updaled and changes in the foravard4dooking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensilive to changas in circumstances and of
forecast economic conditions. The Groups historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may alsa net be representative of custemer's actual default in the future, The information about the
ECLs on the Group's frade receivables and contract assets is disclosad in Note 23,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and labilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date,

Deferred 1ax liabiliies are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

S When the deferred tax liability arnses from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
fransaciion that is nol a busingss combination and, at the ime of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

- In respect of faxable temporary differences associated with investmants in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint arrangemenis, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temparary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assels are recognised for: all deductible temporary differences: the carry forward of unused tax
cradits and unused tax losses, {0 the extent that it is probable that taxable profit wall be available against which
the deductible temporary differences. The carry forwvard of unused tax credits and unused lax losses can be
utilised, excepl:

. When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, al the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

8 In respect of deductible temporary differences associated wath investments in subsidiaries, associates
and inferests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
“Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” CJSC for the year ended 31 December 2013

(Amounts presented are in thousands of Azerbajjanf Manats unfess othenyise stated)

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements {continued)
Useful lives of vessels, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation and amortization charges for its
vessels, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. This estimate is based on projected period over
which the Group expects 10 consume economic benefits from the asset. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it willwnte-off or write-down
technically obsolete assets that have been abandonad or sold. The useful lives are reviewed at least at each
reparting date. Changes in any of the above conditions or estimates may result in adjustments to future
depreciation rates.

Provision for unused vacation

The Group has a policy to settle total amount of payable to individual employee accrued for several years for
unused vacations only whean the vacation option is utilized by the employee and no reliable basis for estimation
of fiming of payment is available.

4, Changes in accounting policies
Mew and amended standards and interpretations

The accounting policias adopted in the preparatiocn of these consolidated financial statements are consistent
with those followad in the preparation of the consoclidated financial statements as at and for the year ended
31 Cecember 2017, except for the adoption of new standards effective as at 1 January 2018, The Group has
not early adopted any standards, interprefations or amendments that have been issued, but are not yet
allective.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Confracts with Customers

IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction Contracts, |AS 18 Revenue and related interpretations and it applies,
witlh imited exceplions, 10 all revenue ansing from conbracts with customers. IFRS 15 establishes a hive step
model o account for revenue ansing from conltracts with customers and requires that revenug be recogisad
at anamount that reflects the consideration 1o which an entity expects to be entilled in exchange tor ransiaming
goods or services 1o a cuslomer.

IFRS 15 requires entiies 1o exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facls and
circumstances when applying each step of the modeal to contracts with their customears. The standard also
specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to
fulfilling a contract.

The Group adopted IFRS 15 using the modified retrospective method of adoption and therefore the
comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under 1AS 18, The Group
assessed that there are no matenal differences ansing from the adoption of IFR3 15, which require comection
to the retained earnings as at 1 January 2018. The adoption of IFRS 15 also had no a matenal impact on the
Group’s operating, investing and financing cash flows.

Set out below, are the amounts by which each consolidated financial statement line item is affected as at and
for the year ended 31 December 2018 as a result of the adoption of IFRS 15 The first column shows amounts
prepared under IFRS 15 and the second column shows what the amounts would have been had IFRS 15 not
heen adopted.
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(Amounts presented are in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats unfess othenyise stated)

4, Changes in accounting policies (continued)
Mew and amended standards and interpretations (continued)

Cansolidated statement of finandal pesition as at 31 December 2018

Amounts prepared under Increase/

Reference IFRS 15 Previous IFRS (decrease)
Total assets 1,196,042 1,156,042 -
Total equity 990,988 990,988 -
Trade and other payables (a) 78,117 86,152 (17,035)
Contract liabilities (a) 17,035 - 17,035
Remaining current liabilities 38,418 39,418 -
Taotal current liabilities 135,570 135,570 -
Total liabilities 205,054 205,054 -
Total equity and liabilities 1,196,042 1,196,042 -

{fa) The Group receives advances from its customers for provision of services. Respective amounts received
in advance should be treated separately, as contract liabilities under IFRS 15.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 replaces |AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual penods on or after
1 January 2018. The Company has not restated comparative information for 2017 for financial instruments in
the scope af IFRS 8. Therefore, the comparative information for 2017 is reported under 1AS 39 and is not
comparable 1o the infarmation presented for 2018. Differences arising from the adoption of IFRS 8 have been
recognised direclly in retained eamings as of 1 January 2018 and are disclosed belaw.,

Retained
earmnings
Closing balance of retained earnings under previous IFRS (31 December 2017) 467,489
Effect of recognition of expecied credit loss provision under IFRSS on retained eamings 15,267
Cefaerred {ax effect of above adjustment on retained samings 1,253
Restated opening balance under IFRS 9 (1 January 2018) 462,475
The effect of adopling IFRS 9 at initial application date of 01 January 2018 is, as follows:
IAS 39 IFRS 9
measurement Transition measurement
31 December adjustment 1 January
2017 (ECL) 2018
Trade and other receivables 155,923 (B, 267) 143 656
Total 155,923 (B,267) 149,656

As indicated in above lable, the adoption of IFRS 2 has fundamentally changed the Group's accounting for
impaiment lossas for financial assels by replacing 1AS 39's incurred |oss approach with a forward-locking
expecled credit loss (ECL) appreoach. IFRS 9 requires the Group to recognize an allowance for ECLs for all
financial assels held al amortized cosls (including contract assets). Upon adoption of IFRS @ the Group
recognised additional impairment on the Group's trade and other receivables of AZN 8 267, which resulted in
a respeclive decrease in Retained eamings as at 1 January 2018,

There are no changes in classification and measurement for the Group's financial liabilities.
Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first ime in 2018, but do not have an impacl on

the financial statements of the Group. The Group has not early adopted any standards, interpretations or
amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective.
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5.  New standards and amendments issued, but not yet effective

The standards and interpretations that are issued, bul not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of
fhe Group's consolidated financial statemenis are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopl these
standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 was issued in January 20146 and it replaces 1AS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement Contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases - incentives and SIC-27 Evalualing the Substance
of Transaclions involving the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS 16 seis oul the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees 1o account for all leases under
a single on-balance sheet model similar 10 the accounting for finance leases under IAS 17. The standard
includes two recognition exemplions for lessees — leases of ‘low-value’ assels (e.g., personal computers) and
shori-term leases (i.e., leases wilh a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease,
a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing
the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.2., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required
10 separately recognise the interest expense an the lease liability and the depreciation expense an the right-of
use asset.

Lessees will be alse required to remeasure the lease liahility upon the occurrence of certain events
{e.q., a change in the lease term, a change in future lease paymenis resulting from a change in an index or
rate used 1o determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement
af the lease liability as an adjustment 1o the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today's accounting under 1AS 17 Lessors
will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in I1AS 17 and distinguish between
two types of leases: operating and finance leases.

IFRS 16, which is effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, requires lesseas and
lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under 1AS 17.

The Group plans to adopt IFRS 16 from effective date applying the modified retrospective transifion method
and will elect to apply the practical expedient that permmits the entty not to reassess whether a contract 1s, or
contains, a lease at the date of initial application. In addition, the Group will elect o use the exemptions
applicable 1o the standard on lease contracts for which the lease terms ends within 12 months as of the date
of inifial application, and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value. The Group has certain
leases that are considered of low value.

The Group i1s in the process of making a preliminary impact assessment of IFRS 16. The Group expects that
upon adoption of IFRS 186, its operaling profil will improve, while its interest expense will increase. This is due
1o the change in the accounting for expenses ol leases that were classilied as operating leases under IAS 17.

IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Incaome Tax Treatment

The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when lax realments involve uncertainty that
aftects the application of I1AS 12 and does nol apply o laxes or levies oulside the scope of I1AS 12, nor does il
specilically include requirements relating 1o interest and penallies associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The Interpretation specilically addresses the following:

- Whether an enfity considers uncertain 1ax treatments separately;

- The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authonties;

- How an entity determines taxable profit (1ax loss), 1ax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
tax rates;

. How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.
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3. New standards and amendments issued, but not yet effective (continued)
IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over income Tax Treatment (continued)

An entity has to determine whether 1o consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or
mare other uncertain tax treatments. The appreach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty should
he followed. The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019,
hut caertain transition reliefs are available. The Group intends to adopt the interpretation on the effective date,
and does not expect the impact of adeption of the interpretation to be material,

Amendments to IFRS & Prepayment Features with Negalive Compensation

Under IFRS 9, a debt instrument can be measured at amorised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, provided that the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interast
on the principal amount ouistanding (the SPPI critenion) and the instrumant is held within the appropriate
husiness model for that classification. The amendments o IFRS & clarfy that a financial asset passes the
SPPI critericn regardless of the event or circumstance that causes the early termination of the contract and
irrespective of which party pays or receives reasonable compensation for the early termination of the contract.

The ameandments should be applied retrospectively and are effective from 1 January 2019, with earlier
application permitted. These amendmenis have no impact on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group

Amendments fa lFRES 10 and lAS 28 Sale or Confnbution of Assets belweern an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture

The amendments addrass the conflict between IFRS 10 and |AS 28 in dezling with the loss of control of a
subsidiary that is sold or confributed 1o an associate or joint venture. The amendments darify that the gain or
loss resulling from the sale or contrnibution of assets that constitute a business, as defined in IFRS 2, bebveen
an investor and its associale or joint venture, is recognised in full. Any gain or loss resulling from the sale or
confribution of assets that do not constitute a business, however, 15 recognised only 1o the extenl of unrelated
investors' interests in the associate or joinl veniure, The |ASB has deferred the effective date of these
amendments indefinitely, but an entity that early adopts the amendments must apply them prospactively.
The Group will apply these amendments when they become effective.

Annual improvements 2015-2017 cycle (issued in December 2017)
These improvements include:

IFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendments clarify that, when an entity obtains control of a businass that is a joint aperalion, it applies
the requirements for a business combination achieved in slages, including remeasuring previously held

interests in the assets and liabilities of the joint operation at fair value. In doing so, the acquirer remeasures its
entire previously held interest in the joint operation.

An entity applies those amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early application
permitted. These amendments will apply on future business combinations of the Group.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

A party that participates in, but does not have joint control of, a joint operation might obtain joint control of the
joint operation in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business as defined in IFRS 3.
The amendments clanfy that the previously held interests in that joint operation are not remeasured.

An entity applies those amendments 1o transactions in which it obtains joint control on or after the beginning

of the first annual reporting period beginning on ar after 1 January 2019, with early application permitted. These
amendments are currenily net applicable to the Group but may apply to future transactions.
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5 New standards and amendments issued, but not yet effective [continued)
Annual improvements 2015-2017 cycle (issued in December 2017) (continued)

AE 12 Income Taxes

The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of dividends are linked mors directly 1o past
transactions or events that generated distributable profits than to distributions to owners. Therefore, an entity
recagnises the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or 10ss, other comprehensive income or equity
according to where the entity originally recaognised those past transactions or events.

An entity applies those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with
early application is permitted. When an entity first applies those amendments, it applies them to the income
tax consequences of dividends recognised on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period. Since
the Group's current practice is in line with these amendments, the Group does not expect any effect on its
consolidated financial statements.

IAS 23 Borrowing Cosis

The amendments clarify that an antity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to
develop a qualifying asset when substantially all of the activities necessary to prepare that assat forits intended
use or sale are complete.

An entity applies those amendments o borowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting pericd in which the entity first applies those amendments. An entity applies those amendments for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early application permitted. Since the
Group's current practice is in ling with these amendments, the Group does not expect any effect on its
consolidated financial statements.

6. Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash

Cash and cash eguivalents and resiricied cash comprised the following as at:

31 December 31 December

2018 2Mm7
AZN denominated bank balances 3,759 4,374
USD denominated bank balances 5,728 2,401
EUR denominated bank balances 497 243
TRY denominaled bank balances 3 14
Cash on hand 8 -
VAT deposit account, AZN 302 55
Total cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash 10,2597 7,097

Effective 1 January 2008 the state 1ax authaonties introduced VAT deposit accounts and enforced payments of
input and cutput VAT via these accounis. In order to comply with new tax regulation, the Group has openad a
VAT deposit account. In accordance with this regulation, the balance on VAT deposit account may only be
withdrawn with a 435 days notice t¢ the tax authorities.
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7. Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables comprised the following as at.

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Trade and other receivables 189,777 159 534
Less: impairment [ass pravisien (10,977) (3,611)
Total trade and other receivables 178,800 155,923

Movements on the provision for impairment of frade receivables were as follows:

At 31 December 2017 (3,611)
Impact of adopling IFRS 2 (6,267)
Adjusted at 1 January 2018 (9,878)
Charge for the vear (1,089)
At 31 December 2018 (10,977)
B. Taxes receivable

Taxes receivable is recoverable by means of an offset against future tax liabilities or as a direct cash refund
from the tax authaorities.

Taxes receivable compnsed the followings as at:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
Receivable from state budget 16,732 8,210
VAT recoverable 5,303 7,089
Total taxes receivable 22035 15,299

Receivable from state budget is related to prepayments made for taxes throughout the year. VAT recoverable
amount related 1o purchases which have not been setlled at the end of the year, and thus not claimed in tax
declarations and prepayment on constiuction works which can be caimed only after the vendor performs the
associated services.

9. Prepayments

Prepayments comprised the following as at:

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Short-term prepayments for trade and services 11,406 9,443
Long-term prepayments for purchase of vessels 120,295 94 050
Total prepayments 131,701 103,493

Prepayments as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 are pnmarily represenied by prepayments
made o suppliers for construction of vessels, raw matenals, spare parts and equipment and repair and
maintenance services for vessels.
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“Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” CJSC for the year ended 31 December 2013

(Amounts presented are in thousands of Azerbajjanf Manats unfess othenyise stated)

10.  Inventories

Inventories comprised the followings as at:

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Raw materials and spare parts 75,02 70,313
Fuel 4,937 4420
Other 2,665 218
Total inventories 82,614 74,949

11. Trade and other payables

Trade and other payablas as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 represant amounts due to suppliers
for raw materials, spare paris and equipment and repair and maintenance services for vessels.

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
Trade payables 70,444 48 887
Total financial payables 70,444 49,687
Advances received from customers - 1,858
Payable to employees 8,673 8,943
Total trade and other payables 79,117 60,494

Financial payables in amount of AZN 50,123 (31 December 2017 AZN 36,167) are denominated in foreign
currencies, mainly in USC and EUR.

12. Loans
At 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, short-term loans of the Group were representad by the following
facilifies:

Balance as at Balance as at

Interest 31 December 31 December
Facilities rate Maturity date 2018 2017
Short-term facilities in AZN 10%/12% March 2019/
June 2019 9,000 -

Current portion of long-term

barrowings 16,322 4 8BB4
Total short-term loans and current

partion of long-term loans 25,322 4,864

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, long-term loans of the Group were representad by
the following facilities:

Balance as at Balance as at
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Interest Maturity Mon-current Current MNon-current Current
Facilities rate date portion portion portion portion
Azerbaijani Manat 42 million 3.65%  August 2024 21174 4 584 25,408 4 564
UsD 2 millien 49%  Cctober 2020 2,125 425 - -
USD 10 million 49% December 2020 16,449 - - -
USD 13 million 4.9% June 2020 11,033 11.033 - -

Total long-term loans 50,781 16,322 25,408 4,864
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13. Vessels, property, plant and equipment

tMovements in the carmying amount of vessels, property, plant and equipment (“PPE") were as follows:

Vehicles,

Buildings and  Machinery and Vessels and furniture and Construction

constructions equipment port facilities ather in pragress Total
Cast
At 1 January 2017 97,129 21,295 1,089,948 21,218 34,055 1,243,643
Addilions 186 3,084 54,797 1,918 95,771 155,737
Disposals (69) (151} (24, 402) {287) - {24,909
Transfers 9512 2,188 39,702 20 (31,403} =
At 31 December 2017 106,758 26,377 1,140,045 22,868 76,423 1,374,471
Addilions 256 4,408 15 8589 2.n84 134 958 157,595
Disposals (138 446} - [441) - 11,035
Transfers 1,080 - B5 A5 i 166, T8} -
At 31 December 2018 107,956 30,329 1,221,568 24,581 146, 597 1,531,031
Depreciation
At 1 January 2017 (13,803) (13,166) (606, 372) {14,348) (6,991) (654,480)
Depreciation charge lor e year {4,243) (2,073 {65 760} (2,141 {74,217)
Dispasals 11 136 23662 263 - 24,072
Al 31 December 2017 (17,835) (15,103) {643,470} {16,226) 6,991) (704,625)
Depreciatnon charge 1or the yoar {4.551) (2530 (21,307) (2,345) - {60,733
Dispusals 19 455 60 815
At 31 December 2016 (22,367) (17,177} {699,777} {18,211} (6,991) (764,523)
Net book value
At 1 Janvary 2017 83,526 6,129 463,576 G, 868 27,064 509,163
At 31 December 2017 88,923 11,274 491,575 5,642 71,432 GEY, 846
At 31 December 2018 H5 589 13,153 521,791 6,370 139 606 TBG,508
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‘Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” CJSC for the year ended 31 December 2018

{Amounts presented are in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats unless otherwise stated)

14. Provisions

Environ-
mental Disability Unused
obligations payments vacation Total

Carrying amount at 1 January 2017 {7,823) (3,343) {7,599) (18,765)
Utilization - 925 22,050 22,975
Disposals 7,823 - - 7,823
Charge - (825) (21,685) (22,610)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2017 - (3.343) {7,234) (10,577)
Utilization - 1,483 22,840 24,323
Cisposals - - - -
Charge - (3,857) (24,374) (27,931)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 - (5,417) {8,768) (14,185)
At 31 December 2017 - (3,343) {7,234) (10,577)
Current - (734) (7,234) {7,968)
MNon-current - (2.B09) - {2,609)
At 31 December 2018 - (5,417) {8,768) (14,185)
Current - (BB2) (B,7538) {9,630)
Mon-current - (4,555) - {4,555)

Provision for disability payments

The Group has an obligation to compensate its employees for the damage caused to their health during their
employment, as well as to compensate the families of the employees died at work. The Group calculated the
present value of the injury payments o employees using a discount rate of 5 93% and 8.15% as at
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, respectively For the purpose of calculation of the lifetime
payments to injured employees, the Group estimated a life expectancy as 73 and 78 for men and women,
respectively.

15. Share capital and additional paid-in capital

Share capital

The Group ncludes fourteen Separate legal entiies each possessing theirr own share capital. As at
31 December 2018 the Company had authonzed and issued 440,050,998 shares at par 1 Azerbaijam Manat
to the Govemment of the Republic of Azerbaijan, which 1s the sole and ulimate shareholder of the Group.
Additional paid-in capital

In 2018 the Group's additional paid-n capital increased by AZN 20000 (2017 AZN 16,000 of which full
amount was contrnbuted as cash.
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“Azerbaijan Caspian Shipping” CJSC for the year ended 31 December 2018

{Amounts presented are in thousands of Azerbajani Manats unless otherwise stated)

16. Analysis of revenue by categories

The Group’'s main services offered are freighl and passenger transportation, offshore support services and
logistics services. Revenue generated by business segments are:

Note 2018 2017

Offshore support services 2489 291 284 878
Freight and passenger transportation 170,779 179,587
Logistics services 23,317 1,127
Other revenue 8,784 8703
Tolal revenue 452171 474,305
Other operaling income from contracts with customers 21 32,328

Total revenue from contracts with customers 484,499

17.  Analysis of expenses by nature

For the year ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 cost of sales, social, general and administrative
axpenses and other operating expenses comprised the followings,

2018 2017

Wages, salaries and social security costs 140,635 124,429
Depraciation of vassels, property, plant and equipment 60,733 74217
Raw materials and consumables used 55,922 47 972
Repairs and maintanance expenses 24 977 27,305
Port charges 22,632 20,582
Logistics expanses 21,750 a74
Food expanses 13,689 12,862
Daily travelling expenses of the crew of marnne transports 10,483 5491
Reimbursable expenses 8,497 10,090
Rent expenses 5,027 4,148
Taxes other than on income 4,59% & 557
Provision of social housing 4,486 -
Insurance expenses 4,101 3,566
Ulilities expenses 3,599 3,823
Agency and brokerage cosls 3,781 1,745
Sponsorship expenses 3,407 1,312
Vessels registration costs 3,092 2,674
Impairment of tfrade and other receivables 1,099 3611
Business tnip expenses 595 1,078
Amortisation of intangible assels 442 275
Writlen off frade receivables 285 1,574
Other 12,438 13,143
Total cost of sales, social, general, administrative and

other operating expenses 406,949 374,429

In 2018 social expenses mainly consist of costs incurred on projects carried out within the framework of the
Group's social and corporate responsibility, including costs for the construction of a residential building for
seafarers who have been registered in the housing queue since Soviet imes, and for sponsorship of a number
of sports organizations as a result of increasing care for sport in the country.
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{Amounts presented are in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats unless otherwise stated)

18. Balances and transactions with related parties

Key management compensation

Key management of the Group includes the Chairman of the Group and its five Deputy Chairman. All of the
Group's key management are appointed by the President of the Azerbaijan Republic. Key management
individuals are entitled 1o salaries and benefits of the Group in accordance with the approved payroll matrix.
During 2018 compensation of key management personnel tolalled to AZN 464 (2017 AZN 333).

The nature of the related party relationships for those related parties with whom the Group entered inlo
significant transactions or had significant balances oulstanding are detailed below.

At 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the oulstanding balances with related parties were as follows:

Government and Government and
entities under entities under

government government
control control
31 December 31 December
2018 2017

Trade and ather receivables 181172 141,137
Bad debt provision (7,281) (2,008)
Prepayments 7 465 3,857
Cash and cash equivalents and rastricted cash 6,818 5077
Long-ferm loans 50,781 (25,408)
Current pertion of long-term loans (16,322 (4 864)
Shart-term loans (9,000) -
Trade and other payables (9,485) (2,337)
Taxes payable (4, 468) 1,284)

The transactions with related parties for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 were as
follows:

Government Government
and entities and entities
under govern- under govern-
ment control ment control
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Freight and passenger transportation services 51,632 57,119
Offshore support services 228,398 201,574
Other operaling income 13,688 20,339
Property tax (4,827) (4,654)
Other taxes (4,569) 1.517)
MNet VAT on free transferred fixed assels 2) (2,408)
Tax fines and claims 130) 1300)
Repairs and maintenance expenses (1,809) (3,378)
Utilites expense (2,761) {2,819)
Ead debls written-off - {1,430)
Port expenses (4,804) {2,781)
Bank charges (B15) 1730)
Finance cast (1,824) (1,404)
Oiher expensas (1,821) (3,395)

Dutstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no
guarantees provided for any related party receivables or payables.
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{Amounts presented are in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats unless otherwise stated)

19. Taxes payable

Taxes payable comprises the following atl:

2018 2017
Current income tax payable (844 -
Social security contributicns (2,782) (493}
Other (840) (731)
Total taxes payable (4,466) {1,284)
20.  Income taxes
Income tax expense comprises the following:

2018 2017
Current income {ax expensea (10,8683, (21,458}
Ceferred 1ax charge (12,524, (16,534}
Income tax expense for the year ended 31 December (23,207) (38,000)
The recanciliation between the expected and the aclual taxation charge is provided below:

2018 2017
Profit before tax 75,669 138,131
Theoretical tax charge at statutory rate of 20 per cent (15,134) {27,6286)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses (5 B68) 5,014
Unrecognised temporary differences (1,148) -
Oiher (1,281) r1,380)
Income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2018 (23,207) {38,000)

Non-deductible expenses are mainly comprised of the social and employee-related expenses as well as the

depreciation expenses of non-revenue generating assets.

Differences between IFRS and applicable domestic tax regulations give nse to temporary differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their lax bases. The tax effect

of the movements in these temporary differences is detailed below.

Origination and

reverse of
temporary
differences in
the conso-
lidated state-
ment of profit
Effect of or loss and
31 December IFRS 9 other compre- 31 December
2017 adoption hensive income 2018
Tax effect of deductible/(taxable)
temporary differences
Vessels, property, plant and equipment 4 - (4) -
Trade and other receivables, nat 775 - (775) -
Inventories B - (8) -
Trade payables and accruad liabilifias 319 - (319) -
Deferred tax assets 1,106 - {1,106) -
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(Amounts presented are in thousands of Azerbajjani Manats untess otherwise stated)

20.  Income taxes (continued)
Drigination and

reverse of
temporary
differences in
the conso-
lidated state-
ment of profit
Effect of or loss and
31 December IFRS 9 other compre- 31 December
2017 adoption hensive income 2018
Tax effect of deductible/{taxable)
temporary differences
Vessels, property, plant and equipmeant (7,964 - (12,695) (20,659)
Mon-current and current provisions 2,115 - 303 2,918
Trade and other receivables, nat 1,482 1,253 285 3,020
Inventories 333 - (194) 144
Trade payables and accrued liabilities 45 - 384 429
Deferred tax liabilities (3,984) 1,253 {11,417) (14,148)
Origination and
reverse of
temporary
differences in
the consolidated
statement of
profit or loss
and other
31 December comprehensive 31 December
2016 income 2017
Tax effect of deductible/{taxable)
temporary differences
Vessels, property, plant and equipment 10,384 (10,380} 4
Mon-current and current provisions 3,753 (3,753) -
Trade and other receivables, nat 1,354 (579) 775
Inventories 441 (433) g
Trade payables and accruad liabilities 370 i51) 318
Deferred tax assets 16,302 (15,196) 1,106
QOrigination and
reverse of
temporary

differences in
the consolidated

statement of

profit or loss

and other
31 December comprehensive 31 December
2016 income 2017
Tax effect of deductible/{taxable)
temporary differences

Vessels, property, plant and eguipment 2,128) (5,B38) 7,964
Non-current and current provisions - 2,115 2,115
Trade and other receivables, nat (10B) 1,590 1,482
Inventories - 338 338
Trade payables and accrued liabilities (402} 447 45

Deferred tax liabilities (2,635) {1,348) (3,984)
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21. Other operating income

Other operating income compnsed of the following:

2018 2017
Sales of other goods and services rendered 12,215 12,317
Income from alliance agreement 10,484 11,124
Other 9,629 11,274
Other operating income from contracts with customers 32,328 34,715
Gain on release of provision and

recovery of receivables written-off 825 8875

Total other operating income 33,253 44 390
22. Finance costs
Finance costs comprised the following:

2018 2017
Interest expense 1,814 1,410
Total finance costs 1,914 1,410

23.  Risk management
Financial nsk factors

The Group's management thal have the appropriate skills, expenence and supervision oversees the
management of rnisks and montors the Group's overall position on a regular basis. This process of risk
management is cntical to the Group and key individuals wathin the Group are accountable for the risk exposures
relating to their responsibilifies.

The Group's poncipal inanoial habilites compnse rade payables, short-teom and long-tenn leans. Cash and
cash equivalents, term deposits, restneted cash, acoruad revenussincomes and rade and olhar recaeivables
repréesent the Group's pnncipal financial assets. Bolh prmcipal hmancial hatxhtes and tinanaal assets ansa
direclly from the: Group’s operalions.

In the ordinary course of business, the Group is exposed to credit, liquidity and market risks. Markel risk anses
from fluctuating prices on commadities purchased and sold, prces of other raw matenals, currency exchanga
rates and interest rates. Depending on degree of price volatility, such fluctuations in market prices may create
volatility in the Group’s financial position. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
perdformance. To effectively manage the variety of exposures that may impact financial results, the Group's
ovemriding strategy is 10 maintain a strong financial position. Based on structured formal management
procedures, management of the Group identifies and evaluates financial risks with reference to the current
market position.

Market nsk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks. Market risks arise from open positions in (i) foreign currencies,
(ny imterest beanng assets and liabilihies, all of which are exposed {0 general and specific market movements.
Management sets limits on the value of nsk that may be accepted, which is monmitored on a regular basis.
However, the use of this approach does not prevent losses outside of these himits in the event of more
significant market movements.
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23.  Risk management {continued)
Market risk (continued)
(i} Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from varnous exposures in the normal course of
husiness, primarily with respect to USD. Foreign exchange risk arises primarily from future commercial
transactions, recognised asseis and liabilities when assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency.

The majority of the Group’s payables and receivables from foreign vendors and customers are denominated
in USD. There were two waves of devaluation of Azerbaijani Manat against USD (34% on 21 February 2015
and 48% on 21 December 2015) and ather major foreign currencies in 2015, There has been no significant
devaluation of AZN against USD and other major cumrencies dunng the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2018,

Managament does not hedge the Group’s foreign exchange risk,
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the USD, EUR,

TRY exchange ratas, with all other variables hald constant, of the Group's post-tax profit. There is no material
impact on the Group’s equity:

Change Effect on 2018 Change Effect on 2017
in rates (+/-) post-tax profit in rates {+/-) post-tax profit
USD/AZMN 14.00%/-3.00% 18,512)%1,288  13.50%/-13.50% 3,B17/(3,817)
EUR/AZN 14.00%/-3.00% (1.0530226 11.30%/-11.30% 408/(408)
TRYIAZN 20.00%/-25.00% (295v31  14.00%/-20.00% (19¥W27

(i) Interest rafe risk

The Group is subject o interest rate risk on financial liabilities and assets with variable interest rates.
To mitigate this nsk, the Group’s management performs periodic analysis of the current interast rate
environment and depending on that analysis managemeant makes decsions wheather it would be more
beneficial 1o obtain financing on a fixed-rate or vanable-rate basis. In case wheare the change in the curmrent
market fixed or vanable interest rates is considerad significant management may consider refinancing a
particular debt on more favourable interest rate terms.

Changes in interast rates impact primarily debl by changing sither thair fair value (fixed rale debt) or their future
cash flows {(vanable rate debt). Management dees not have a formal policy of determining how much of the
Group’s exposure should be to fixed or variable rates. However, at the time of raising new debts management
uses its judgment 1o decide whether it believes that a fixed or vanable rate would be more favourable over the
expected period until maturity.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 date the Group's interest bearing liabilities are not
significantly affected by fluctuating interest rate.

Credit risk and concentration of credit nsk

Credit risk refers to the risk exposure that a potential financial loss to the Group may ocour if counterparty
defaults on its contractual obligations.

The Group’s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit nisk consist pnmanly of cash
and cash equivalenis and trade recevables.

The Group places its cash with reputable financial institutions in the Azerbaijan Republic. The Group's cash 1s
mainly placed with the Intemational Bank of Azerbaijan ((IBA™) which s controlled by the Azerbanani
Govermnment. The balance of cash and cash equivalents held wath the IBA at 31 December 2018 was
AZN § 580 (2017 AZN 5.077). The Group continually monitors the status of the banks where its accounts are
maintained.
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23.  Risk management (continued)
Credit risk and concentration of credit risk (continuecd)

The Group's maximum exposure 1o cradit risk is represented by carrying amounts of financial assets on the
consolidated statement of financial position and is presentad by class of assets as shown in the table below:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
Cash and cash equivalents (Note ) 9,895 7032
Trade and other receivables, nat (Nota 7) 178,800 155,923
Total maximum exposure to credit risk 188,795 162,955

Trade and other receivables in amount of AZN 31,418 (31 December 2017 AZN 58 628) are denominated in
foreign currencies, mainly in US0 and EUR.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group's established policy, procedures
and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit gquality of a customer is assessed based on
an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual cradit limits are defined in accordance wath this assessmenl.

An impairment analysis is performed al each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected
cradit losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of vanous cuslomer segments
with similar loss patlerns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage
by letters of credit or other forms of creditinsurance), The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome,
the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is availlable at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. The maximum exposure to
credit nsk at the reporling dale is the carrying value of each class of financial assats disclosed in above table.

The expected loss allowance as at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018 {on adoption of IFRS 8) was
determined as follows for rade receivables from customers:

Less than More than
30 days 30-60 days 6190 days  91-360 days 360 days
31 December 2016 past due past due past due past due past due Total
Gross carrying amount of 36,664 40,104 26,799 B5,.493 712 188,777
trade receivables
Less impaimment pravision {3,151) {1,653) (1.425} (4 035} (712} (10,977}
Met trade receivables 33,513 38,451 25,374 81,462 - 178,800
Less than More than
0 days 30-60 days 6180 days  91-360 days 36D days
1 January 2018 past due past due past due past due past due Total
Gross carrying amount of 32,443 31,372 27 BES 65,490 2 361 159,534
trade receivables
Less impairment pravision (3,187) (808} (604 (2,817} (2,361} 9,877)
Met trade receivables 29,256 30,564 27,264 62,573 - 149,657

The Group structures the levels of credit risk it accepls by placing limils on its exposure to a single counterparty,
or groups of counterparties. Such nsks are subject to an annual or more freguent review. Limits on the level
of credit risk by category are approved annually by management.
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23.  Risk management {continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

In assessing the credit quality of financial assets the Group censiders the nature of counterparty, histarical
infermation about counterparty, default rates and any other available information which can be used to assess
credit quality.

Trade receivables cansist mainly of receivables from offshere and transportation services rendered o top
customers eperating an the local market in ¢il and gas indusiry. The Group's credit risk arising from its frade
receivables is further mitigated by confinuous menitoring of the creditworthiness of customers.

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not he able to meet its financial abligations as they fall due.
The Group's appreach 1o managing liguidity is to ensure that it will always have sufficient liquidity 1o meet its
liabiliies when due, under both normal and stressed conditiens, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Group’s reputation. In managing liquidity risk, the Group maintains adequate cash
reserves and debt facilities, continuously monitors forecast and actual cash flows

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient working capital and the ability to close out
market positions. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity reserve on the basis of
axpectad cash flows.

All of the Group’'s financial liabilities represent non-derivative financial instrumenis. The table below analyses
the Group’s financial liabiliies into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period from the
consolidated statement of financial position date to the confractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
fhe fable are the contractiual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months approximate their
carrying values, as the impadct of discounting is not significant.

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and 21 December 2017 was as follows:

Less than More than
At 31 December 2018 Notes 3months  3-12 months  1-5 years 5 years Total
Trade payables 11 70,444 - - - 70,444
Loans 12 3,898 25,825 48,931 2,706 81,160
Total undiscounted
financial liabilities 74,342 25,625 48,931 2,706 151,604
Less than More than
At 31 December 2017 Notes 3months  3-12 months  1-5 years 5 years Total
Trade payables 11 48 687 - - - 49,687
Loans 12 2,735 4 566 19,369 7,155 33,825
Total undiscounted
financial liabilities 52,422 4 566 19,369 7,155 83,512

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of the financial assels and liabilities is included at the amount that would be received to sell an
asset or paid 10 transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market parlicipants at the measurement
date. The estimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined by the Group using available
market information, where it exists, and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, judgment is
necessarily required to interpret market data to determine the estimated fair value. Management has used all
available market information in estimating the fair value of financial instruments.
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23. Risk management {continued)
Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Set out belew is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group's financial
instruments that are carried in the consclidated financial statemeants

31 December 2018

Carrying Fair

amounts values
Cash and cash equivalents (Nole ) 9,895 5,995
Trade receivables and olher receivables (Note 7) 178,800 178,800
Total financial assets 188,795 188,795
Total financial payables (Note 11) (70,444) (70,444)
Short-term loans (Note 12) (8,000) 18,000)
Current portion of lang-term loans (Note 12) (16,322) {16,322)
Leng-term loans (Note 12) (50,781) (50,781)
Total financial liabilities (146,495) (146,495)

31 December 2017

Carrying Fair

amounts values
Cash and cash equivalents (Nole 6) 7,032 7,032
Trade receivables and other receivables (Note 7) 155,923 155,923
Total financial assets 162,955 162,955
Total financial payables (Note 11) (49,657) (49,887
Current partion af long-tenm loans (Notle 12) (+4,B854) 4,554
Long-term loans (Nole 12) (25,408) (25,408)
Total financial liabilities (79,959) {79,959)

The following methods and assumplions were used to estimate the fair values:

(i Short-lerm financial assets and labilibes approximate their carmang  amounts  lamgely dug 1o
the shorl-tem matunbes of these nstruments,

{in) Long-term fixed-rate and vanable-rate recewvables/loans are evaluated by the Group wusing Level 3
mputs based on parameters such as interest rales, speche counbry nsk  tactors,  indiwidoal
creditworthiness ot customers and the nsk characlenstics of the linanced project,

Capital management
The pnmary objective of the Group's capilal management policy is 10 ensure a strong capital base to fund and
suslain its business operations through prudent investment decisions and lo maintam shargholders and

creditor conhidence 10 support its business acltivibies,

The Group s 100% aowned by the Government and penodically recawves tunds in the fom of the Govarnmeant
investments tor purchase ol new vessels.
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23. Risk management (continued)
Capital management (continued)
The Group considers total capital under management to be as follows:

31 December 31 December

Motes 2018 2017
Shaort-term loans 12 9,000 -
Nan-current portiocn of leng-term leans 12 50,781 25,408
Current portion of long-term loans 12 18,322 4 BB4
Trade and cther payables and accrued liabilities 11 79117 5B 838
Less: cash and cash equivalents g (9,885) 17,032)
Net debt 145,225 81,876
Equity 15 990,858 523,540
Capital and net debt 1,136,213 1,005,418
Gearing ralio 13% 8%

24. Contingencies, commitments and operating risks
Operating environment

The Group’'s operations are mainly conducted in the Caspian Sea region. Besides this, the Group considers
significant expansion in its foreign operations and as a result, 858% of dry cargo transportation dunng 2018
comprised of operations in Black Sea region. As an emerging markel, at the present time the Republic of
Azerbajjan does nol possess a well-developed business and regulatory infrastructure that would generally
existin a more mature markel economy.

Azerbaijan continues economic reforms and development of its legal, tax and regulatory frameworks.
The future stability of the Azerbaijan economy is largely dependent upan these reforms and the effectiveness
of economic, financial and monetary measures undertaken by the government as well as crude oil prices and
stability of Azerbaijani Manat.

The Azerbaijan economy has been negatively impactad by decline of oil prices and devaluation of Azerbaijani
Manat during 2015. This resulted in reduced access to capital, a higher cost of capital, inflation and uncertainty
regarding ecenomic grawth.

In respense to these challenges, Azerbaijani government announced plans to accelerate reforms and support
financial system. On 6 December 2016 President of the Republic of Azerbaijan approved Strategic Road Maps
for the Nafional Economy and Main Economic Sectors of Azerbaijan. The road maps cover 2016-2020
development strategy, long-term outlock up to 2025 and vision beyond.

Furthermare, during 2018 the govemmeant continued tight monetary policy as well as allocated foreign currency
resources which stabilized Azerbaijani Manat. This policy i1s expected to continue in 2018 with the aim of
maintaining macroeconomic stability.

The Group's management is maonitoring economic developments in the curment environment and taking
precautionary measuras it considered necessary in order to support the sustainability and development of the
Group’s business in the foreseeablea future.

While Management believes it is faking appropriate measures to support the sustainability of the Group's
businass in the current circumstances, unexpected further deterioration in the areas described above could
nagatively affect the Group’s results and financial position in a manner not currently determinable.

The accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments that may result from the future
clarification of thase uncertainties. Such adjustments, if any, will be reported in the period when they becomea
known and estimable.
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24, Contingencies, commitments and operating risks (continued)
Legal proceedings

On the basis of ifs own estimates and both intermmal and external professional advice management is of
the opinion that no material losses will ba incurred in respact of claims in excess of provisions that have been
made in these consolidated financial statemeants

Tax legislation

Azerbaijan tax, currency and customs legislation is subject to varying interpretations, and changes, which may
ocour frequently. Management's interpretation of such legislation as applied to the transactions and activity of
the Group may be challengad by the relevant authorities.

The Group's managament believes that its interpretation of the relevant legislation is apprepriate and the
Group’s tax, currency legislation and customs positions will be sustained and potential tax liabilities of the
GSroup will not exceed the amounts recorded in these consclidated financial statements.

Environmental matters

The enforcement of environmental requlation in the Azerbaijan Republic is evolving and the enforcement
posture of government authorties 1s confinually being reconsidered, The Group periodically evaluates its
abligations under environmental regulations. As obligations are determined, they are recognised immediately.
Potential liabilities, which might arise as a result of changes in existing regulations, cvil litigation or legislation,
cannot be estimated but could be material. In the current enforcement climate under existing legislation,
management believes thal there are no significant liabilities for environmental damages.

The Group is subject 10 numerous national and local environmental laws and regulations concerning its
products, operations and other activities. These laws and regulations may require the Group to take future
action o remediate the effects on the environment of the Group’s operations. Such contingencies may exist
for various waste digposal sites. In addition, the Group may have obligations relating to prior asset sales or
closed facilities. The ultimate requirement for remediation and its cost are inherently difficult to estimate. While
the amounts of future costs could be significant and could be matenal 1o the Group’s results of cperations in
the period in which they are recognised, it is not practical 1o estimate the amounts invalved. The Group does
not expect these costs to have a matenal effect on the Group’s financial position or liguidity.

25.  Events after the reporting date

Mo subsequent events have occurred that would require recognition ar disclosure in the consolidated financial
statemenis.
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